
ANNUAL
REPORT



JUNIOR AGE MANAGERS
Junior Officer Alison Smith
Under 6 Pippa Sweet 
 Blair Trew
Under 7 Anthea Redding 
 Darren Westphal
Under 8 Grant Trew 
 Nancy Shaw
Under 9 Joel Ireland 
 Nick Payne
Under 10  Michael Hogg 
 Michale Lorraine
Under 11 Clayton Dorrington 
 Travis England
Under 12 Damian Ryan 
 Tim Swart
Under 13 Chris Browne
Social Coordinator Tina Moore

SURF SPORTS POSITIONS
Boat Captain Elizabeth Murray
Surf Boat Coach John Leivers (Garbo)
 Steve Bowler
 Patrick Anderson Loake
 Bruce Lilburne
 Peter Waey
 Thomas Lowther
 Mal Lowther
 Grant Trew
 Kathleen Unwin
 Geoff Wilson
Head of Water Rick Turner
Assistant Water Coach Mark Stewart
 Andrew Walker
 Ben Hewitt
Head of Beach Leigh Buchan
Assistant Beach Coach Brett Slocombe
Head of R & R  Farook Razvi
Head of March Past Ian Scott
Nipper Water Coach Andrew Young
 Mark Stewart
Junior Sports Coordinator Martin Gallagher

STAFF
Project Officer Narelle Pyne
Administrator Kylie Leaman
Function Coordinator Rachael Hughes
Reception Kate Irwin
 Nicky Simpson
 Alicia Glass
Gym Coordinator Matthew Whinnen
Exercise Physiologist Leon Musca
Junior Sports Coordinator Martin Gallagher
Bar Manager Honor Lane

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
President Stephen Carrick
Vice President Brittany Huitenga
Director of Finance Damien Van Pelt
Director of Surf Sport Chris Murphy
Director of Beach Operations Helen Loake
Director of Member Services Meaghan Carrick
Director of Youth Angela Razvi
Director of Junior Activities Andrew Young
Club Manager Patrick Anderson Loake

BEACH COMMITTEE
Director of Beach Operations Helen Loake
Director of Youth Angela Razvi
Director of Surf Sport (Chair) Chris Murphy
Director of Junior Activities Andrew Young
Co-Club Captains Georgia Williams
 Paige Bajada
Assistant Surf Sports Officer Jack Retty
Life Saving Coordinator Graham Wimbridge
Joint Mobile Services Officers Tim Speer
 Mike Lowry
 Phil Green
 Arthur Bajada
Joint Education Officers Phil Green
 Matthew Slattery
First Aid Officer Nat Speer
Secretary (Non Voting)  Susan Carrick

PATRON
Mayor (Town of Cambridge)  Keri Shannon

VICE PATRON
Member for Churchlands Hon. Sean L’Estrange MLA

HOUSE COMMITTEE
Greg Johnson Kevin Hogg
Greg Trew Mark Holland

CONSTITUTION COMMITTEE 
Richard Grosser (Chair) Ian Scott
Sue Scott Kevin Hogg

LIFE MEMBER COMMITTEE 
Paul Andrew (Chair) Grant Trew
Robert Harper Mal Lowther
Penelope Cohen

YOUTH POSITIONS
Youth Age Coordinator Under14 Ben Rogers
Youth Age Coordinator Under16/17 Heath McCabe

CLUB HISTORIANS
Sue Scott Ian Scott

OUR CLUB



CONTENTS
President Report 06
Life Members 07
Club Manager Report 08
Club Captains Report 10
Membership Services Report 13
Beach Operations Report 14
Youth Report 16
Junior Activities Report 18
Masters Report 20
Surf Sports Report 22
Surf League Report 23
City Sprint 24
Social Sprint / 2km Fitness Group 25
The Club Swim 26
Life Saving Report  27
First Aid Report 27
Water Arena Report 28

Boat Arena Report 29
IRB Report 30
Education Report 32
Historian / Archivist Report 34
March Past Report 35
Club Trophies and Awards 36
Awards of Excellence 37
State Short Course Boat Championships 37
State Masters Championships 2020 38
State Surf Belt Championships 2020 38
State Endurance Championships 39
State Little Nippers Championships 2020 39
Patrol Information 40
Patrol Hours 41
Financial Statements 44
Auditor ’s Report 58



A significant part of our Club is our 
relationship with our sponsors and 
our partner, Maxima. The sponsors 
are highlighted throughout this 
report and, on behalf of the Club 
and its members, I offer each 
of you a huge thank you for 
your continuing support of and 
contribution to our Club.

Our ‘ONE CLUB, ONE COMMUNITY’ 
vision is one that is shared by our 
valued partner, Maxima. From all 
of our members, thank you to the 
Hutton family and to Maxima for 
their steadfast partnership with the 
City of Perth SLSC.

Our Administration team, 
professionally led by Club Manager, 
Patrick Anderson Loake, has 
capably managed the growing 
demands of our business.  

We have continued to strengthen 
our skill base within the team.  
As the public face of our 
organisation, they do a wonderful 
job with great enthusiasm.

The Executive team has maintained 
a regular meeting schedule, even 
during the period of restrictions 
due to COVID-19, to ensure that 
the variety of issues that face the 
management of a contemporary 
surf club are addressed. The 
Executive voluntarily offers time 
and expertise, and its direction 
and professionalism have been 
invaluable as we continue to grow 
as a Club. A heartfelt thank you to 
Brittany Huitenga, Angela Razvi, 
Meaghan Carrick, Andrew Young, 
Helen Loake, Chris Murphy, Damien 
Van Pelt, and our Club Captains, 

Georgia Williams and Paige Bajada. 
Generous and competent people 
like this are the heart of our Club.

In closing, I would like to thank  
the Executive, the Administration, 
Gym and Functions team, and each 
and every member of the Club for 
your continued dedication. The 
ongoing support of our State body 
SLSWA is also acknowledged and 
greatly appreciated.

It has been a privilege to serve as 
President of the City of Perth Surf 
Lifesaving Club in the 2019/20 
season and I look forward to the 
challenges and successes of the 
coming year.

Stephen Carrick
President

On behalf of the Executive 
Committee and the Administration 
team, thank you to all members for 
your support and understanding 
during this most difficult time. Like 
all clubs and businesses, COVID-19 
restrictions have had a significant 
impact on the City of Perth SLSC.

Whilst we were unable to complete 
the surf season in our traditional 
way, we should not forget the many 
positives that have been achieved.

Our membership numbers have 
remained strong and our overall 
financial position, even during this 
period, is sound. We have continued 
to negotiate the challenges of 
operating in the building, while 
managing a contemporary surf 
lifesaving and community club. We 
have maintained strategic focus 
on our relevance in the broader 
community, with health and 
wellbeing activities central to our 
strategic plan. 

I need to recognise the efforts of our 
Administration team in remaining 
positive during this difficult period. 
Initiatives, such as the online gym 
classes, provided members with an 
exercise option while maintaining a 
connection with the Club. We also 
got to meet Colin ‘the rabbit’ who 
has assumed cult-like status with 
the online participants.

Our patrolling members again 
excelled this season and the 
standard of the volunteer service 
offered by the Club is a credit to 
every patrolling member. The 18 
Patrol Teams led by the 18 Patrol 
Captains collectively play a vital 
leadership role within our club. It 
is important that we acknowledge 
the level of responsibility that this 
group voluntarily assumes on behalf 
of every member and the wider 
community. Congratulations to 
Peter Johnson whose outstanding 
service to patrolling at City of Perth 
was recognised in the award of the 
President’s Medal.

Under our ‘ONE CLUB, ONE 
COMMUNITY’ vision, the Club 
engaged in local community 
events in association with the 
Town of Cambridge and the City 
Beach Precinct. We also assisted 
in organising the Cambridge Open 
Water Swim in association with 
Floreat SLSC.

The Woodside Nippers sponsorship, 
delivered through SLSWA, benefited 
our overall Club and we are deeply 
appreciative of this initiative. Our 
Nipper membership continues to 
grow and their lively presence has 
positively influenced the Sunday 
morning experience with the 
courtyard and promenade becoming 
a gathering place for club members. 

Some-Day Coffee Co.’s involvement 
in our club café has added another 
layer to the Sunday morning 
experience. We look forward to 
continuing our relationship. 

The Club’s Education and training 
sections are growing with wonderful 
achievements highlighted in this 
report. Under the guidance of 
Angela Razvi, our Youth program 
has expanded and is delivering 
terrific results. 

Even with a reduced surf sports 
program, our members still excelled 
with success in winning the 2020 
WA Surf League, and great results at 
the national competitions, the Super 
Surf Team League and the Australian 
Surf Rowers League Open. 

The Sunset Surf Ski Series lifted to 
another level this season and it was 
terrific to see our Club members 
and Club Rooms at the centre of  
the competition.

The Executive supported an 
increased focus on functions,  
with Rachael Hughes’ skills fitting 
in well as the Function Coordinator. 
We continue to receive a positive 
response from the community  
and the increased revenue is 
a major factor in our improved 
financial position.

PRESIDENT 
REPORT

It is with pleasure that I present 
the 2019/20 Annual Report. 
To say that this has been an 
unusual year would be an 
understatement. 

1935 C Bader *
1935 RE Gatherer *
1935 HF Bader *
1935 AJ Levy *
1939 A Peacock *
1943 J Mayberry *
1944 RL Sanderson *
1945 M McMillan *
1946 GS Parr *
1948 LD Jacks *
1949 HM Henderson *
1950 EWC Jacks *
1951 OEHarmer *
1952 WA Mortimer *
1956 HK Riley mbe *

1960 WR Somerford *
1963 TJ Hayden *
1966 G Kino *
1966 RB Ramsay
1971 ID Scott oam
1971 J Trethowan
1974 RG Roberts oam *
1975 ERJ Mickle bm
1977 SR Jacks *
1980 JF Harbison *
1984 J Leivers
1987 RL Groser
1988 S Scott
1988 GR Trew
1989 RE Harper

1989 RB McRae *
1989 GA Mickle
1992 A Collins
1992 KEJ Hogg
1992 ID McRae
1993 WA Jarman
1993 G Leivers
1993 JL Pouleris
1995 LM Buchan
1997 RB Somerford
1998 D Trew
2001 WE Gaynor oam
2001 JH O’Donoghue
2001 JI Scott
2004 PC Andrew

2004 JC Jardine *
2005 JL Scott
2005 RF Turner
2008 RW King
2010 ML.Lowther
2010 GS Wilson
2012 PL Cohen
2012 BD Lilburne
2012 PG Waey
2015 MA Hughes
2015 GR Trew
2016 LT Kelly
2018 E Gibbs

* Denotes deceased

PRESIDENT REPORT CONT...

LIFE MEMBERS

There is no Life Membership recipient during the 2019/20 season.
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With 1st July comes the start of a 
new season. Our 2019/20 Executive 
Committee, led again by Stephen 
Carrick, had several returning 
members as well as a couple of 
fresh faces. Welcome to the Monday 
night meetings Brittany Huitenga, 
Meaghan Carrick, Chris Murphy, and 
our new Club Co-Captains Paige 
Bajada and Georgia Williams.

Returning to support the club 
for another season was Maxima, 
GPA Empire Village, Metro Motors 
Holden and Morley Mitsubishi. 
The state-wide Nipper sponsor 
Woodside also joined the party this 
year. Thanks to our sponsors for 
the support throughout the season.

During the preseason, we were 
extremely lucky to have two 
fantastic volunteers assisting the 
administration team to ensure we 
hit the season running:

• Alisa Pearson ensured the shop 
was fully stocked and ready 
to go, this greatly contributed 
to the smoothest Nipper 
registration day I have ever 
witnessed. Alisa also helped with 
the shop throughout the season. 
A shout-out must also go to 
Ari Pearson who demonstrated 
some fantastic salesmanship 
behind the reception counter  
on Sundays.

• Farook Razvi, website wizard 
and husband to our club member 
of the year, assisted our admin 
team by developing our new 
website. The result is modern, 
informative, user friendly and 
eye catching. It has dramatically 
changed enquiries and positively 
impacted function bookings and 
gym membership numbers.

After a strong preseason, Some-
Day Coffee Co. joined the Sunday 
mayhem and kept our members 
well caffeinated. Feedback from the 
membership was fantastic and the 
quality coffee and food was enjoyed 
throughout the season.

Our commercial operations 
developed further to ensure that 
we could continue to provide 
our patrolling members with the 
equipment that is required to keep 
our community safe at City Beach. 
Matthew Whinnen continued to 
facilitate the membership growth in 
the gym. Our function centre took 
several steps forward as Rachael 
Hughes expanded the club’s client 
base. Our venue is now being used 
for a variety of activities, from 
professional seminars to weddings 
and everything in between. Behind 
the scenes, Kylie Leaman and 
Narelle Pyne worked to ensure 
smooth operations at the club and 
were assisted by our brilliant trio 
at reception Nicky Simpson, Kate 
Irwin, and Alicia Glass.

Moreover, as our club building is 
exposed to the extreme elements 
and takes a beating throughout the 
year, a special thanks must go to 
the House Committee, consisting 
of Greg Johnston, Greg Trew, 
Kevin Hogg and Mark Holland, for 
ensuring that the club is kept afloat.

Although the season finished in 
a completely different fashion to 
usual, and we were unable to run 
the club and community events 
that occur in the latter half of the 
season, we achieved our primary 
goal and maintained a presence on 
the beach to keep our community 
safe. To all the volunteers at 
the club, although 2019/20 was 
disjointed, we could not have 
achieved what we did without you. 
Here’s to 2020/21 and beyond.

Patrick Anderson Loake
Club Manager

CLUB MANAGER REPORT FINANCIAL REPORT

KEY INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ITEMS
Income 2019/20 2018/19
- Membership & Gym fees $437,833 $439,223
- Grants, Donations and Sponsorship $112,597 $111,431
- Galley Members Lounge $8,363 $87,117
- Room Hire - functions $144,233 $43,312
- Club Merchandise sales $29,884 $34,020
- Events & Promotions $28,233 $36,364

Expenses 2019/20 2018/19
- Employment expenses $309,600 $282,930
- Administration $73,094 $65,825
- Facilities $140,587 $128,853
- Depreciation $152,043 $150,953

SPECIAL THANKS
I would like to personally thank:

• Patrick Anderson Loake, Kylie Leaman, Narelle Pyne, Rachael Hughes 
and Matthew Whinnen for the great work they do supporting the Club 
and our members

• John and Bill Hutton for Maxima’s sponsorship and ongoing financial 
support

• Ian Barnetson, Kirsty Barnetson and Sam Bean at Fit Profits for their 
accounting services and advice

• Alisa Pearson for managing the Club merchandise shop
• All our sponsors and volunteers for their support to help make  

a great club!

Damien Van Pelt
Director of Finance

Despite a challenging year due 
to COVID-19, the Club made an 
operating profit of $33,345 for 
the 2019/20 financial year.  Key 
highlights were:

• Total income received was 
$908,884 compared to $879,343 
last year

• Income from membership fees 
is up on last year primarily due 
to higher Nipper registrations 
and an increase in Community 
Associates.  Gym fees were 
$136,820 compared to $160,153 
in 2018/19 as a result of the gym 
being closed during COVID-19, 
with expenses including staff 
costs of $71,072.  The gym is 
also generating other income 
through personal training and 
massage services

• Funds received from 
Sponsorship, Grants and 
Fundraising was $112,597 
compared to $111,431 in 2018/19

• Income from functions and room 
hire was significantly higher than 
last year at $144,233 despite 
cancellations due to COVID-19

• Total expenses were slightly 
lower than last year ($875,539 
compared to $889,556 for 
2018/19)

• Expense control continues to be 
a focus for the Executive

CITY OF PERTH SLSC – ANNUAL REPORT 202008



This season has been a ride, that 
is for sure.

We came onto the scene for the first 
time as club captains, and from the 
very beginning we were welcomed 
with open arms and many, many 
suggestions (all appreciated!). It 
soon dawned on us that we really 
didn’t have much of a clue as to 
what it meant to be a ‘club captain’, 
so we buckled up for a season 
of learning, experimenting and 
discovering how we could bring our 
passion for our club to the members.

Our first real challenge was trying 
to put together an Excel 
spreadsheet collating all the club 
calendars - we can safely say it  
was not a success. Putting our 
lacking Excel skills to the side, we 
found ourselves at our first club 
meetings, the start of the Nippers 
and the beginnings of another 
successful competition season. 

A particular highlight for us 
throughout the season was the 
Sunday morning meetings. It was 
fantastic to see so many people 
down at the club, especially when 
the weather was nice. We hope 
everyone enjoyed our jokes, and 
for those that weren’t able to make 
it this season, never fear! We have 
plans in the works to offer the joke 
of the week (and other club news) 
online in the coming season. Thank 
you to all those who supported us in 
running our weekly recaps!

Another favourite event was the 
Peter Rowsthorn Comedy Night 
- it was certainly a surprise to 
see people dressed in something 
other than their usual Sunday 
morning outfits. Following on from 
this hilarious night, another great 
success was the Club Quiz Night. 
A massive thank you goes out 
to our fabulously talented social 
committee for organising this 
event. We would love to hold more 
quizzes in the coming seasons, and 
we promise it will be noted that 
Antarctica is definitely the world’s 
biggest desert.

Overall, our competitors achieved 
great results. It was another exciting 
year for our surf league teams and 
we once more saw many of our 
athletes selected in the Western 
Suns interstate teams. Well done on 
all your efforts!

On a more serious note, it was 
unfortunate to see the big events, 
such as the Club Championships, 
States, Aussies, and the Annual 
Dinner and Awards Night, be 
cancelled, along with all gym access 
and classes due to the COVID-19 
outbreak. A huge thank you is 
deserved to everyone involved in 
maintaining our strong community 
online, particularly the gym classes 
(and our special bunny friend, 
Colin!). As much as we would 
have loved to have celebrated the 
season together during this time, 
the response from our community 
is a resounding example of our club 
ethos; together, we are ONE CLUB, 
ONE COMMUNITY.

Thank you for an unforgettable 
2019/20 season. We can’t wait for 
the next one! 

Paige Bajada and Georgia Williams
Co-Club Captains

CLUB CAPTAINS REPORT
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I will start my report by saying 
something that I’m sure you would 
have read or heard a million times 
already over the past 2 months, well 
we didn’t see that one coming! 

Such extra-ordinary times that 
left many of our athletes without 
a battle to compete in, our gym 
members without a chance to work 
out with their ocean views and all 
our awards nights attendees had to 
watch it all full virtual.

Amongst all this though, the real 
meaning of being a club and a 
community came out in full force 
and it made me so proud and 
honoured to be the director for 
Member Services this year. Knowing 
that even when everything that you 
thought surf club was, every battle 
you thought you needed to fight 
was taken away, the feeling that you 
belonged, and would return soon, to 
the City of Perth SLSC, never went 
away and that is something very 
special to have had. 

If you felt the same way then it 
should come to no surprise that this 
season, that started back in pre-
COVID-19, we yet again exceeded 
the last, with total membership 
numbers up almost 100 to a total 
of 1753. Junior activity numbers 
continued to grow thanks to the hard 
work and effort of the age group 
managers, the nipper parents and 
the nippers themselves, an effort that 
continues to amaze us all. General 
and associate members together 
made up such a large portion of our 
membership base again this year and 
we have our phenomenal gym and 
the staff behind it to thank for so 
many of those.

This year, we as a club, did 
everything in our power to give 
back to these and all of our 
members as this season came to 
an abrupt halt. We owed it to you 
after everything the members bring 
to the club this and every season. I 
hope that we managed to keep you 
hanging out for things to return 
to our new normal and like me, are 
counting down the days till next 
season can begin. 

As I have said before, my main  
focus is to represent the members 
and the member opinion in club 
decisions, I look forward to working 
with you all as we rebuild and 
thrive from this period of adversity. 
Something that I have already had 
the pleasure of seeing my club do, 
so many times already. 

I hope I have the pleasure of 
fulfilling this role again and look 
forward to hearing from (and 
actually seeing) you all soon.

Meaghan Carrick
Director of Membership Services

MEMBERSHIP SERVICES REPORT

2019/2020 MEMBERSHIP STATISTICS

Total
Probationary 8
Junior Activity Member (5-13 years) 545
Cadet Member (13-15 years) 75
Active (15-18 years) 59
Active (18 years and over) 130
Award Member 18
Reserve Active 5
Long Service 73
Associate 366
Life Member 34
General 430
Honorary 4
Non Member Participants 2
Leave / Restricted 4

1753

13



City Beach is a busy hub for 
the community, and the Beach 
Operations Team is responsible 
for all activities that take place 
on the beach. The team remained 
unchanged from last season, and I 
would like to thank them all for their 
ongoing enthusiasm and energy. It 
continues to be a privilege to work 
alongside this group consisting of:

• Patrols – Graham Wimbridge
• Education - Matthew Slattery 

and Phil Green
• Mobile Services – Arthur 

Bajada, Time Speer and  
Mike Lowry

• First Aid – Nat Speer

Patrolling City Beach is the core 
business of our surf club. We would 
not be able to provide this vital 
service for the Town of Cambridge 
without the dedication of our 
volunteers. In many different roles, 
they step up week after week 
throughout the year to ensure that 
our beach is a safe place to visit. A 
huge thank you to all our members - 
young and old, new and experienced 
- who make our operation possible. 

Consolidating on the strong 
base they created last season, 
our Education Officers, together 
with our trainers and assessors, 
provided first class courses for our 
members. Stephen Reynolds once 
again coordinated the requals in an 
organised and timely manner.

As always, the mobile services 
team were involved at every turn, 
providing essential support to the 
beach operations. The vibrant, 
energetic, and fun atmosphere 
around the IRB shed is a constant. 
Jet Ski drivers made themselves 
available for water safety on the 
Abalone days, for which we received 
funds from Surf Life Saving  
Western Australia.

Our first aid room is always well-
stocked and organised thanks to 
the ongoing efforts of Nat Speer. 
Thankfully, she was available during 
the last few weeks of the season 
to provide guidance and support 
for the patrols, ensuring that we 
were able to comply with Surf 
Life Saving Western Australia’s 
recommendations as the COVID-19 
situation unfolded.

A goal outlined at the start of the 
season was to have an operational 
drone on Sunday mornings. We 
were able to achieve this goal 
thanks to our returning pilots and 
four new ones. 

Although not on the beach 
committee, the following members 
provided essential input to support 
beach operations:

• Drones – Jeff Scott
• Radios – Daniel Scott
• Equipment & Board 

Maintenance – Mark Anderson

Holden Metro Motors and Morley 
Mitsubishi once again generously 
sponsored a vehicle for the duration 
of the patrolling season – having 
an extra vehicle on the beach to 
support the ATV is invaluable. An 
Advantage Community Grant of 
$1500 was received from “Realestate.
com.au”, which was used to finance 
the purchase of a rescue mannequin 
for the Mobile Services Team. The 
trainers had asked for a mannequin 
so that training and rescue drills 
are able to proceed throughout the 
winter months when volunteers 
are not so keen to jump into the 
cold winter swells. Thanks to club 
member Rob Walker who helped 
obtain this grant! The club always 
welcomes information about grant 
opportunities, large or small - please 
contact the office with any leads. As 
this example shows, there are grants 
out there - we just need to know 
about them. 

In conjunction with Floreat Surf 
Life Saving Club, we ran the second 
Cambridge Open Water Swim in 
early February from the Floreat 
club rooms. Numbers were slightly 
increased from the previous year 
and funds were raised. Next year, 
the swim will be run out of our club, 
so we need to take the opportunity 
to grow the event further and ensure 
that it is a recognised event on the 
open water swimming calendar.

Thanks to Susan Carrick who  
has once again been responsible  
for producing agendas and minutes 
for the Beach Committee, Chris 
Murphy for chairing the beach 
committee meetings, and to the 
Administration for their continued 
dedication and support.

Helen Loake
Director of Beach Operations

BEACH OPERATIONS REPORT
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The City of Perth Surf Life 
Saving Club Youth (U14s-U17s) 
had a highly successful season 
in many aspects of the club, 
from competitions to education, 
volunteering to patrolling, and 
everything in between. 

The objectives of our Youth 
programme follow those of the Club 
- ‘ONE CLUB, ONE COMMUNITY’. 
The Youth Committee believe in 
providing a safe environment where 
our Youth members can experience 
as many aspects of the surf club 
as possible. We provide many 
opportunities around fitness, fun, 
competition, friendship, development 
and community service. 

There were 110 Youth (U14-U17s) 
signed up for the 2019/20 season, 
which is an increase of 18% from 
the previous year. For two 
consecutive years, there has been 
an increase in Youth memberships 
at City of Perth Surf Life Saving 
Club of 16% and 18%. Our objective 
is to continue to increase Youth 
memberships each year, by 
providing interesting programmes 
based around our club objectives. 

Youth members continue to play a 
significant role in assisting with club 

activities and external events, such 
as assisting with water safety for the 
Woodside Nippers, the Triple S Ski 
Series, Cambridge Open Water Swim 
and at Surf Lifesaving carnivals. 

For the first time, there were three 
U17s - Ayesha Razvi, Mia Fraser 
and Sara Shular, who completed the 
Nipper Age Managers course and 
assisted the Nipper Age Managers 
U7s, U8s and U9s on Sunday 
mornings. They were able to bring 
their years of experience as Nippers 
and their competition skills to 
enrich the Nipper’s experience.

Another first for this season, we 
had three Youth members - Grace 
Young, Innes Raeburn and Luka 
Allet, complete the Youth Officials 
course in January 2020 and were 
straight into their officiating 
duties at Surf Life Saving Western 
Australia carnivals, including the 
Woodside Nippers carnival that 
was held at City of Perth Surf Life 
Saving Club.

The season started with different 
sections of the club coming to 
talk to the Youth as part of the 
Youth Information Session. Many 
of the Youth are transitioning from 
Nippers or are new to the club, so 
these sessions are very important to 
learn about what the club offers for 
the Youth. It also enabled the Youth 

to meet coaches and athletes from 
these different sections, such as 
competition, surf sports, surf boats, 
IRBs, R&R and First Aid.

During the season, the Youth 
enjoyed the Wellness Day which 
included a HIIT session with 
Matthew Whinnen from the gym. 
Meaghan Carrick, Director of 
Member Services, came to talk to 
the group about mental health and 
ways to stay mentally healthy. The 
Youth then got to make their own 
juices and smoothies with healthy 
options, and they were delicious!

Another important part of the 
Youth activities is the Club Swim 
with record numbers of Youth 
participating each week. In the end 
of season Club Swim awards, Remy 
Payne was 1st male, Euan McKay 
was runner up, Rosa Dickie was 
1st female and Elinor Webster was 
runner up. Most Improved Swimmer 
was Trinity Williams and runner up 
was Zoe Gainer. The Best Family was 
won by the Longhorn family (Ralph 
and Ashley) and runners up were the 
Hunt family (Karin, Nathan, Timmy).

 ‘Have a Go’ days continued, and 
Youth members had a chance to 
try IRBs, surf boats and surf skis. 
The ‘Have a Go’ day with the IRBs 
continue to be very popular with the 
Youth and we are very appreciative 

of their ongoing support. The ‘Have 
a Go’ day for surfboats and surf skis 
was conducted at City of Perth Surf 
Life Saving Club this year in near 
perfect conditions. These days are 
important for the Youth members to 
experience different aspects of the 
club that they may wish to join.

Many club members were 
nominated for the U14/U15 TOAD 
Camp, with four City of Perth Youth 
being selected to attend – Remy 
Payne, Rory Wallace, Sophie Baron-
Hay and Grace Young. One U17s, 
Joshua Boulton, was selected for 
the Rise Up Camp. 

During the season, a record of 40 
Youth gained their Surf Rescue 
Certificate (SRC) qualification and 
began patrolling for the first time 
this season. In addition, 26 Youth 
achieved their Bronze Medallion. 
These qualifications are a major 
focus for the Youth programme and 
a platform for greater involvement 
within the club. This could not be 
done without the support of the 
trainers who put in many hours.

The Youth continued to have many 
successes in carnivals - competing 
in local and country carnivals, and 
the Surf League series. Four Youth 
members were announced as part 
of the Western Suns Development 
Squad – Sophie Baron-Hay, Jules 

Fredonnet, Nathan Hunt and Mia 
Nesbit. One Youth member, Nikita 
Fredonnet (U17), was announced 
as a member of the Western Suns 
Senior team.

The following Youth members were 
nominated for the Surf Life Saving 
Western Australia Youth Awards, 
in the following categories: U15 
Lifesaver of the Year - Lily Rohde; 
Youth Achiever of the Year – 
Ayesha Razvi; and Youth Official of 
the Year – Grace Young.

During the season, the Surf Life 
Saving Western Australia Youth 
Leadership Programme (YLP) 
continued with 23 U14s achieving 
their Bronze, six U15s achieving 
their Silver and four U17s achieving 
their Gold award. It was great to 
see that many members, both new 
and old to the club, were working 
towards their points this season, 
by helping out around the club, 
volunteering and helping with 
maintenance jobs.

Special congratulations to the 
finalists and winners of the Club 
Youth Awards this season:

MOST PROMISING U14
Rosa Dickie, Jules Fredonnet, Ethan 
Nguyen, Lily Rohde, Emma Rogers, 
Jorja Van Pelt 
Winner – Euan McKay 

MOST PROMISING U15
Jack Glass, Nathan Hunt, Samuel 
Morison, Mia Nesbit
Winners – Sophie Baron-Hay and 
Grace Young

MOST PROMISING U17
Imogen Herrington, Zai McCabe, 
Alex Slocombe, Sara Shular 
Winner – Ayesha Razvi

MOST ENTHUSIASTIC U19 
Meng Houng Chroek,  
Ethan Jackson, Sinan Wehrli, 
Tiziano Wehrli
Winner – Paige Bajada

The Youth subcommittee is made 
up of a highly experienced team 
who mentor each of their age 
groups and bring years of surf 
experience. Special thanks to Heath 
McCabe (U17s), Karin Hunt (U15s), 
Ben Rogers (U14s) and Tamsyn 
Young (YLP Coordinator).

Thanks for a great season.

Angela Razvi
Director of Youth

YOUTH 
REPORT
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As we all know the 2019/20 season 
was completely turned on its head by 
the outbreak to the COVID-19 virus. 
With only a few hours to go before 
the start of the 2020 Nipper State 
Championships, the call was made to 
cancel the event and with that came 
an abrupt finish to our season. With 
all the hard work and dedication that 
had gone into preparing our Nippers 
for their state championships, it was 
a very disappointing way to finish the 
summer. But, in saying that we still 
had many highlights over the summer 
and major improvements to the way 
we deliver our Nipper Programme. 

Again, this is all because of our 
amazing volunteers. To all the age 
managers, assistants, coaches, 
IRB crews, water safety, club shop, 
competition officials and BBQ 
volunteers we thank you. Our Nipper 
Programme cannot function without 
the ongoing commitment of parents/
carers who are able and willing to 
put in the many hours of hard work 
that it takes to make it all happen.

To Patrick our club manager, and 
the administration staff at the 
club - thank you. We are extremely 
lucky to have such a dedicated 
team. I would also like to thank 
our Executive Committee for their 
continued support and guidance.

In June of 2019 Woodside Energy 
announced a new partnership with 
Surf Life Saving Western Australia 
which involved the naming rights for 
the Nipper Programme which is now 
known as the Woodside Nippers. 
The cash funds we received as a 
part of this sponsorship agreement 
has been a major boost to our 
Nipper Programme. It has allowed 
us to start investing in new 
equipment and resources, not just 
for the Nippers but for the benefit 
of the club as a whole. This year, 
as a result of the extra funding, we 
have been able to start replacing 
our ageing fleet of Nipper boards 
and invest in new soft racing mals 
for the U13’s transitioning into the 
youth section.

We have also seen the introduction 
of a new position of Junior Surf 
Sports Officer, with the aim of 
providing a more consistent and 
professional approach to the 
management of Surf Sports in the 
Nipper area. Martin Gallagher took 
on the position halfway through the 
season and began a water based 
coaching programme developed 
for those who were interested in 
improving their board paddling and 
surf swimming fitness, skills and 
technique. I would like to thank 
Martin for his efforts this season 
and look forward to seeing how 
we can improve and expand this 
programme in the years to come.

The 2019/20 season kicked off 
with our annual Woodside Nipper 
Registration Day. This year, the age 
managers and assistants had the 
unenviable task of distributing over 
500 Woodside packs. Again, it was a 
great afternoon with lots of excited 
Nippers wearing their shiny new 
Woodside kit. 

We were back on the beach on 
the last Sunday in October and so 
began another packed summer 
calendar. The annual “Jacko Day” 
was back at City of Perth Surf Life 
Saving Club this year hosting the 
Scarborough “Urchins”. The City 
Nippers put on a fine display to 
retain the Jacko Title. Thanks to the 
Scarborough crew for making this 
annual event such a success.

The U6’s joined us down at the 
beach at the beginning of December 
and the first of the Nipper Carnivals 
was held at Sorrento. The following 
week was the Nipper Xmas Fun 
Day and City Santa made one of his 
most spectacular entrances I have 
seen in many years! 

After the Christmas break the 
Nipper Calendar becomes very busy 
and this year was no exception. We 
kicked off the new year with the 
first of the Little Nipper Carnivals 
and the Nipper Training Camp. 
Once again it was a massive hit 
with the kids. The U8’s and U9’s 
joined in on the Friday morning 
for a few fun relays and big cook 
up breaky to finish! Thank you to 
all who assisted in organising this 
event and a big thank you to all 
the coaches, athletes, water safety 
volunteers and the breakfast crew 
who volunteered their time. It was 
great to see so many youth and 
senior members helping out.

By far the biggest highlight for me 
personally this season was hosting 
our first Nipper Carnival in many, 
many years at City Beach. With the 
proceeds of the carnival, entry fees 
are now going direct to the hosting 
club. It was one of our clubs major 
fund-raising events for the season. 

To encourage more of our City 
Nippers to participate in surf 
sports, it was agreed that we 
waive the carnival entry fee for 
our competitors. The response 
was amazing with 117 City Nippers 
taking part. With over 800 Nipper 
competitors and their families 
descending onto City Beach, and 
quite possibly some of the best 
weather of the summer, it really 
showcased what an amazing venue 
we now have. It was such an honour 
to see how the club came together, 
with every section of the club doing 
their bit to make sure the event was 
a success. We received nothing but 
positive feedback. A massive shout 
out to Patrick Anderson Loake, 
Chris Murphy and Ben Rogers who 
were all instrumental in organising 
this event. 

Smiths Beach hosted it first ever 
Country Carnival over the Australia 
Day long weekend. It was fantastic 
to see many Nipper families make 
the journey down south. We were 
blessed with amazing weather and 
perfect conditions over the 2 days 
of competition at Smiths Beach and 
were treated to some great racing 
by our club members. Thanks to 
Smiths Beach and Surf Life Saving 
Western Australia for putting 
together such a great event.

February saw our Nippers head 
to Mullaloo for the Nipper State 
Qualifiers. Little did we know that 
this would be the last race of the 
season for most of our Nippers. 
So, Congratulations to all those 
individuals who qualified for the 
SunSmart Western Australia Nipper 
Surf Life Saving Championships. 
The Little Nippers did however 
manage to compete in their State 
Championships. They joined nearly 
500 other little nippers at Sorrento 
Beach for an actioned packed day 
of events. Well done to all our  
Little Nippers.

Unfortunately, things were slowly 
starting to unravel as the COVID-19 
virus took hold. We continued on 
and held our annual States Players 
tea and States Shirt Presentation 
on the Wednesday before states. 
The kids look awesome in their new 
states shirts. A big thank you to our 
wonderful shirt sponsors Belpile 
and City Beach Pharmacy for your 
continued support. And a big thank 
you to the Berti Family from the  
Re Store who catered for our  
hungry Nippers.

With all that expectation, it was gut 
wrenching when we all heard the 
news that our State Championships 
were cancelled. But, knowing what 
we know now it was the right 
decision. We now turn our focus to 
the future and doing it bigger and 
better in the 2020/21 season. 

Thank you to all our club sponsors 
and everyone who has contributed 
to our Woodside Nippers over the 
season. It is what make this club  
so great.

Andrew Young
Director of Junior Activities

JUNIOR ACTIVITIES REPORT JUNIOR ACTIVITIES REPORT CONT...
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City of Perth’s Masters section in 
general was fairly quiet in 2019/20, 
but we did achieve two of our main 
goals: running a regular Masters-
specific training session and getting 
a decent-sized team together to go 
to Masters State Champs.

The Masters-specific training 
sessions run from December to 
March, and were geared towards 
beginner to intermediate athletes, 
with the aims of getting more club 
members involved in surf sports 
and providing structured sessions 
for those who wanted to train with 
a group. The sessions were aimed 
to be inclusive and encouraging, 
regardless of ability and fitness, 
with some teaching and refining 
of skills and a bit of fitness work. 
Session numbers were generally 
small, but over the course of the 
season we had around 15 individuals 
turn up to take part, including a 
few regulars, who improved greatly 
over the course of the season. 
The sessions were held on Sunday 
mornings – perfect timing to get 
in some waves before the Nippers 
filled up the beach and for a well 
earnt coffee afterwards.

City Masters competitors represented 
the club in their age groups in the 
State Endurance Championship in 
November and in the Masters States 
Championship in March (we did have 
a couple slotted in to do Aussies 
Masters as well). Additionally, several 
of our Masters competed in the open 
division at the Country Carnival, the 
Western Australian Surf League, and 
throughout the season in the Western 
Australian Surf Rowers League.

Masters State Championship was 
held in Denmark this season, the 
first time it’s been out of the metro 
area in a while. The promise of 
decent waves and a fun weekend 
away spurred a few people to dust 
off their bathers and make the trip. 
Joanna Kagi kicked off City’s efforts 
with a superbly executed 2km run, 
beating all the females (including a 
few quite a bit younger) to take gold. 
Once it got under way, the water 
programme ran non-stop, with many 
age groups condensed into one race 
to make for some good racing. 

The men’s arena saw Troy Santen 
and Michael Colliss in their first 
carnivals in decades. Combining 
with Adrian Hirsch and Peter Scott, 
the boys all brought home a medal 
or several, including medals in all 
the team events. 

 Some superb efforts from the lads 
and the ladies! Most importantly, 
conditions were perfect on Saturday 
with some medium sized fun waves 
on offer and a bit of sunshine. We 
all had a really fun day catching 
(or not...) some waves and enjoying 
catching up with old friends, 
rekindling some friendly rivalries... 
and we definitely earnt the burgers 
and drinks afterwards. 

A thought for the boaties... who had 
a good day playing in the waves 
on Saturday while getting sweeps 
accredited for Aussies. However, 
the looming Sunday forecast of high 
winds plus moderate swell did come 
through on Saturday night, turning 
Ocean Beach into not-so-fun 
conditions. The boat was moved to 
Middleton Beach in Albany, though 
that proved pretty nasty as well 
(other events following the Masters 
boats were cancelled). 

All the competitors from the other 
arenas were sad they did not get to 
watch the boats (it had been a rare 
chance) but were glad to hear City 
Black had again been awesome and 
won gold in their age group. The 
Phantoms apparently were not so 
lucky. Big ups to all the City boaties 
who came back to Denmark that 
afternoon and supported the host 
club - who were indeed fantastic 
hosts.

Many of our Masters competitors 
take on extra duties in the club,  
be it coaching, on committees,  
or as officials. Thanks to all who 
gave up their time to help out 
throughout the season. Big thanks 
to Chris Murphy for keeping the surf 
sports section in order. Well done 
all our competitors and supporters! 
See you again next year, for some 
more fun.

Emily Chetwin and Adrian Hirsch
Masters Surf Sports Coordinators

MASTERS REPORT

In the female arena Nicola Scott, 
Linda Jackson and Sharan Colliss 
all won individual golds and more 
medals were won in team events 
with some input from Emily Chetwin.
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In a somewhat less than spectacular 
season for Surf Sports in 2019/20, 
I am very pleased to report the 
outstanding success of the Club 
in those competitions in which we 
were able to participate.

Through our team of dedicated 
Surf Sports coaches, led by Leigh 
Buchan on the beach and Rick 
Turner in the water events, and 
together with our ski and surf boat 
coaches, some great talents were 
developed and refined to produce 
some excellent results for the 
season that was. 

Surf League 2019/20 was once 
again a high point for the Club, with 
City Red clear winners in all three 
rounds and City Black bringing 
home a 5th, 3rd and 5th out of field 
of 14 teams. 

City of Perth Surf Life Saving Club 
was strongly represented across the 
three teams representing Western 
Australia at the inaugural Super 
Surf Teams League competition in 
New South Wales and Queensland. 
With ten City members across the 
squad of 34, our Club provided a 
very substantial contribution across 
all event areas and was key to the 
Scarborough Sunsets - winning two 
of the three rounds and winning the 
series overall. While this is of course 
a mixed club, team event, special 
mention goes to Gabrielle Murphy, 
2nd Beach Sprint; Jade Mickle, 2nd 
Surf Race; and Matthew Collis, 3rd 
Board Race. 

Western Suns - Two twelve-
member teams (Youth and Open) 
represented Western Australia at 
the Interstate Championships on 
January 24th, 2020 at Alexander 
Heads. Nikita Fredonnet, Sophie 
Lloyd, Matthew Collis and Charlie 
Hewitt represented City of Perth 
Surf Life Saving Club in the Youth 
Squad, and Jacqueline Lord and 
Max Anderson Loake represented 
the Club in the Open Squad, which 
contributed to Western Australia’s 
third place in the Youth, Open and 
overall competition results.

Our Surf Boat crews, March Past 
team and Masters Squad also 
acquitted themselves well in state 
and some national competitions.

While City of Perth Surf Life Saving 
Club did not field teams in the Pool, 
First Aid or Champion Lifesaver 
State Championships, a growing 
young crew of R&R competitors, and 
a good showing in the Endurance 
Championships, helped us 
continue to remain one of the most 
competitive clubs on the coast.

We look forward to the challenges 
of the 2020/21 season and will 
not only improve on our current 
strengths, but also place renewed 
effort into those disciplines under-
represented this season.

Chris Murphy
Director of Surf Sports

It gives City of Perth Surf Life 
Saving Club great pleasure to 
announce that we were successful in 
winning all three Surf Leagues this 
year … again! That brings our total 
streak to eight wins in a row and 
eight wins from nine events which is 
the entire duration that Surf League 
has run in Western Australia. It gave 
our selection team, athletes and 
club a huge grin to be announced 
in front of Trigg three times, whom 
had thought they’d done enough to 
challenge us this year.

The Western Australian Surf 
League comprises of boats, beach 
and water events and has been 
running as Surf Life Saving Western 
Australia’s flagship carnivals for the 
prior two seasons. It is held across 
three rounds throughout the season 
and fortunately was not interrupted 
by COVID-19.

Thank you again to all the coaches 
and captains whom assisted with 
the selection of our teams. In terms 
of overall team results we had the 
club well represented with two 
teams; City Red & City Black. City 
Red were clear winners in all three 
rounds and City Black bringing 
home a 5th, 3rd and 5th out of a 
field of 14 teams. These results 
brought $10,000 in prize money to 
our club and an additional three 
large trophies which can be seen at 
our club’s reception. It also exhibits 
our continued dominance across 
the board in surf sports and speaks 
to the true character of our club, the 
brains of our coaches and the heart 
of our competitors.

Highlights from the Club’s 
perspective came from those whom 
stood up to help their respective 
teams in events they normally 
wouldn’t try. These include: 

• Talia Jakubans: Completing 
her first ironwoman in years 
at the tricky beach of Secret 
Harbour in round 1. Normally 
better known for her ability 
to swim beside her ski, Talia 
disappointed many of her fellow 
competitors as she got around 
without any slip ups, placing 6th 
overall in the event.

• Max Anderson Loake: No 
stranger to the spotlight, in 
round 3 Max decided he’d like to 
test the abilities of some of the 
world’s best in the flag pit. After 
finding flags in the sand for six 
rounds, he rubbed shoulders 
with Jackson Symonds before 
placing a respectable and 
surprising 6th place.

• Jack Blom: A board paddler by 
nature and now known as a Jack 
of all trades, made the ultimate 
sacrifice and ran in all three 
rounds for the club in the beach 
arena including the 1km team 
runs, sprints and flags.

For more highlights from Surf 
League 2019/20 please see Surf 
Life Saving Western Australia’s 
YouTube channel. Thanks again for 
all of those involved and we look 
forward to continuing our strong 
performances in the future. 

Jack Retty
Assistant Surf Sports Officer and 
Former Under 17 State Ironman 
Champion

SURF SPORTS REPORT SURF LEAGUE 
REPORT
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CITY SPRINT SOCIAL SPRINT / 2KM FITNESS GROUP

Despite a sudden and premature 
ending to the season, what a 
fantastic season it was! Things 
were looking good on a number 
of fronts. We had strength and 
numbers across the board in girls 
competition, from seniors down to 
U14’s. In addition, Chris Murphy was 
bringing on a good group of U14 
and U15 boys.

Even though we didn’t get the 
opportunity to compete in any 
major championships in 2020, there 
were a number of significant events 
conducted from October to February, 
both in and outside surf, in which 
members of City Sprint participated 
and had exceptional results.

NATIONAL SUPER SURF  
TEAMS LEAGUE
This was fantastic initiative by 
Surf Life Saving Australia, which 
mirrored Western Australia’s highly 
successful Surf League concept, 
but at a national level. Thirteen 
regional teams from around Australia 
competed against each other over 
three rounds. In the three teams from 
Western Australia, four City Sprint 
runners were selected to participate:

• Julia Dwyer  
(Margaret River Waves) 

• Brittany Huitenga and 
Jacqueline Lord  
(Broome Pearlers) 

• Gabrielle Murphy  
(Scarborough Sunsets)

After the three rounds, Scarborough 
Sunsets with Gabrielle Murphy were 
crowned the inaugural National Surf 
League Teams champions.

Well done to all on being selected 
for this national competition.

SURF LIFE SAVING WESTERN 
AUSTRALIA SURF LEAGUE 
Closer to home, City of Perth Surf 
Life Saving Club again dominated 
the local Surf League competition. 
Across the three rounds, our 
runners contributed the following 
results for their respective teams:

Round 1 
City Red
• Brittany Huitenga: 

1st in sprint and flags
• Aiden Murphy: 

7th in sprint and 9th in flags
City Black
• Julia Dwyer: 

2nd in flags and 7th in sprint
Round 2
City Red
• Gabrielle Murphy: 

1st in flags and 2nd in sprint
City Black
• Sophie Watts: 

1st in sprint and 2nd in flags
Round 3
City Red
• Imogen Herrington: 

3rd in sprint and 8th in flags
City Black
• Mia Fraser: 

4th in flags and 6th in sprint

OUTSIDE OF SURF
Outside of surf, some of our girls 
competed in some major athletics 
and professional running events, 
with some pretty impressive results. 
In the Athletics Western Australia 
State Championships, City Sprint 
girls took out both the state 100m 
and 200m titles and filled most of 
the placings in those events as well.

State Open Women 100m
1st Sophie Watts
3rd Gabrielle Murphy

State Open Women 200m
1st Alysse Priddis
2nd Sophie Watts
3rd Gabrielle Murphy

State U17 Women 100m
3rd Imogen Herrington

In the professional running scene, 
the Bunbury Gift is one of the most 
prestigious events in Australia. 
With handicap races over various 
distances conducted over the 
weekend, City Sprint again was well 
represented, with a number of wins 
and places.

70m Handicap
1st Sophie Watts
3rd Alysse Priddis
6th  Julia Dwyer

Backmarkers 120m
1st Alysse Priddis

U20 Womens 100m 
3rd Imogen Herrington

Bunbury Gift (120m)
2nd Sophie Watts
3rd Imogen Herrington

Special thanks to:

• Brett Slocombe; Gym Program 
Manager, Assistant Coach and 
Physiotherapist all in one.

• Meaghan Carrick; doing an 
awesome job with the “2K” 
group and physiotherapy to hold 
us together.

• Chris Murphy; always there  
to help whenever needed,  
and taking on the onerous  
Surf Sports position. Many 
thanks Chris.

Leigh Buchan
Head Beach Coach

Representing the “I want to get 
fitter”, the “I’m building up to 
sprinting” and the “I’m trying it out” 
runners, as well as the 2km athletes. 
Social Sprint train alongside the 
competitive sprinters, but we 
subtract the velocity and add the 
distance. We trained hard this year, 
from pre-season at Perry Lakes with 
Zamia Trial runs, to the beach and 
dune runs in the competitive side of 
the season. We finish every session 
with high fives and a grin even if 
we have to help you up from the 
ground to get it! 

This year we helped provide the 
pool of 1km runners for the very 
successful Surf Leagues and 
although we never got to compete 
in States or Aussies, we had a 
few athletes on track for a pretty 
amazing season in the 2km event.

We are a section of the club 
dedicated to building fitness, no 
matter the starting point, and we 
cater for all speeds and distances 
too - we love running with anyone 
from the youth, the masters age 
groups and every age in between. 

I coach these sessions as an ex-
sprinter, as a physiotherapist and as 
a club member just wanting to keep 
myself and my club members active, 
and I can’t wait to have more social 
runners down for the 2021 season 
once the virus lets us back! 

Meaghan Carrick 
Social Sprint Coach
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LIFE SAVING REPORT THE CLUB SWIM

The Club is once again indebted 
to all the patrolling members, 
as they fulfil the purpose of the 
Club – keeping our beach safe. 
The foundation of the patrols are 
our outstanding Captains and 
Vice Captains. A number of new 
Captains stepping up from being 
Vice Captains last season – Harry 
Osborne, Elizabeth Mair, Max 
Anderson Loake and Tom Wagstaff. 
Many of our Captains may be young 
but are highly competent as a result 
of the years they have spent at the 
Club or in lifesaving.

This season ran pretty smoothly 
from the outset. Our teams and 
arrangements building on the 
stability that has been established 
over the last few seasons. During 
the start of the season, October 
and November, there was some nice 
conditions for patrolling. The core 
of our teams getting back together 
and quickly settling into the routine, 
perhaps with the exception of the 
Patrol App – technology is good 
when it works and frustrating when 
it doesn’t.

A feature of the season was the 
relative consistency of team 
membership. Most patrolling 
members did the majority of their 
patrols on their assigned team. 
Another pleasing aspect of the 
season was the injection of 33 new 
well-trained bronze members and 40 
enthusiastic SRCs. I am sure there 
are a number of future Captains 
and Vice Captains amongst our new 
patrolling members.

Christmas Day saw a good number 
of members volunteering. The 
weather was good, but conditions 
got a little tricky after the sea 
breeze came in around 11am. There 
were a number of rescues and a 
broken collarbone. Thanks to Shaun 
Jessop as Captain, the board rescue 
skills of our Club Captain Georgia 
Williams, and a number of Club 
members on the beach stepping 
into assist – Jess Hallet, Jason 
Stoop and Phil Green - all went well.

In the new year we began the rescue 
and first aid scenario assessments. 
The performance of all teams was 
first class. Most of the patients 
(SRCs) did a good job, but a couple 
either didn’t follow the script or 
were looking for an Academy Award. 

The scenarios reinforce what the 
Patrols can do and gives a focus 
for what needs to improve. They 
are a good vehicle for discussion 
and reflection. Helen and I enjoy 
assessing the scenarios and a 
number of Patrolling members said 
they enjoy doing the assessment.

The patrolling season came to a 
timely end on March 31st, 2020. The 
last weekend of patrols was pared 
down to four patrolling members. 
The patrols had to follow a social 
distancing model provided to the 
club by Surf Life Saving Australia. 
After experiencing the isolation 
of COVID-19, being cramped up 
together in the patrol shelter and 
chatting during the season doesn’t 
seem that bad now.

It is a privilege to be the Patrol 
Officer for the City of Perth Surf 
Life Saving Club, getting to know 
our Captains, Vice Captains and 
patrolling members and appreciate 
what a quality group of people  
they are.

Graham Wimbridge 
Patrolling Officer

The Club swim is back. This season 
it attracted all the stars: Established 
Stars - Em Chetwin and Kelvin 
Bishop; Rising Stars - Rosa Dickie 
and Remy Payne; Fading Stars - 
Peter Scott and Rory Trotter; and 
the Constellation of Stars that is the 
Youth Group.

The anticipation was palpable 
each Sunday morning at 9:15am 
on the line next to the black and 
white checked flag. Once the swim 
began, the competition was fierce, 
if you count a bit of jostling before 
swimmers briskly waded into the 
water. The finishes reinforced the 
endeavour and skill shown in the 
swim, and that the handicapping 
was insightful, despite the 
protesting of certain competitors.

The commitment to this premium 
event of the Club was steady 
throughout the season. Given the 
quality of swimmers this season, 
and the high intensity training 
planned by our elite athletes for 
this winter (red wine and Netflix), 
I suspect that with the postponing 
of the Olympics, the Club swim may 
elevate to become the go to event 
for the 2020/21 season.

A big thanks to all those who 
supported the Club swim through 
their participation this season. An 
extra big thanks to Angela Razvi for 
recording the results, Karin Hunt 
and Ben Rogers for organising the 
competitors, and special mention 
to Tim Speer, Mike Lowry and the 
other IRB guys. 

Next season onto bigger and better 
swims and next level prizes – see 
you all there next to the black and 
white flag at 9:15am.

Graham Wimbridge
Handicapper

The 2019/20 season was another 
busy one with 258 First Aid incidents. 
Fortunately, there were less of the 
more serious incidents, but a 66% 
increase in minor marine stings. 

The club has an impressive number 
of patrolling members with First 
Aid qualifications. In conjunction 
with our Education Officers and the 

Surf Life Saving Western Australia’s 
free First Aid courses, I aim to drive 
a further increase in the number 
of First Aid qualifications among 
members next year. 

Natalie Speer
First Aid Officer

STATISTICS
258 first aid cases as follows:
5 Fractures/Dislocations
1 Heart Related
27 Minor Cuts/Abrasions
1 Major Wounds
216 Minor Marine Stings
1 Spinal
7 Other 

FIRST AID REPORT
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A truism for the dedicated athlete, 
but I’m with you… it would have 
been nice to receive a little 
encouragement to round the season 
out by way of some Aussie success.

It’s not about the destination, it’s all 
about the journey – bugger that! I’d 
like to start winning medals again. 
Success is a choice.

Rather than limiting our chances, 
the pandemic has actually given us 
a leg up. The coaches on the east 
coast have all been sacked and 
their squads dispersed to all parts 
of the country whereas we are all 
here and ready to pick up where we 
left off. We should be in full training 
by the time you read this. Shopping 
is currently the only remaining 
extreme sport but I can feel a 
Coolangatta coming. 

This is supposed to be a review 
of the season so it’s really just a 
novella. We excelled in the Surf 
League once again, and again, and 
again. Well done all. When we win 
this year, it will be renamed the  
City Surf League. 

Our initial goal this upcoming 
season will be to keep filling the 
State teams with City members. 
Last year we were proud of the 
accomplishments of our selected 
senior water representatives Max 
Anderson Loake, Charlie Hewitt, 
Matt Colliss, Sophie Lloyd and 
Nikita Fredonnet, together with 
our juniors Nathan Hunt, Jules 
Fredonnet, Mia Nesbit and Sophie 
Baron-Hay.

Fortunately, there were no border 
restrictions early in the season 
and we welcomed the Hewitts, 
Fredonnets, Whitmores (I couldn’t 
write Eldon) and Bloms. As you 
can see, all our imports helped 
keep us relevant this year and 
all are in training to repeat the 
dose. Huitenga, Retty and Carrick 
are showing signs of life and are 
anxious to get out of the house.

Stewart, Walker and Turner are alive 
and well and ready to help.

See you soon.

Rick Turner
Head of Water

The 2019/20 season was short and 
unique and saw the boat section 
mixing it up with other sections at 
competitions and around the club. 
In a change of event formatting, 
clubs made a change and added 
novelty events to carnivals to 
support inter-club moral. The boat 
section travelled to Denmark for the 
Short Course State Championships 
and Smiths Beach for the Country 
Carnival. We had 9 crews competing 
this season. Ultimately, we were 
unable to compete at States, but 
that will only drive us to compete 
harder next year.

I was honoured to take over the 
reigns as the Boat Captain this year 
and was overwhelmed by just how 
wonderful the people in the boat 
section are. I have been supported 
unconditionally throughout the 
season and am proud to be a part 
of such a wonderful section. There 
are so many wonderful people who 
work tirelessly within our club and 
wider community to ensure the 
success of our sport. I am proud to 
lead a section that not only work as 
teams within our crews but support 
each other around the club.

We had some fantastic results 
across the season including 
the selection of The City 5’s to 
represent Western Australia at 
the ASRL as the Under 19’s female 
team. The girls did an amazing job 
which resulted in them receiving 
a silver medal. Unfortunately, 

due to conditions the girls were 
unable to compete for Western 
Australia in the interstate challenge. 
Attending the ASRL is an invaluable 
experience and it is amazing to 
see youth teams doing so well 
and breathing new life into our 
boat section. The success of the 
girls is due to their true grit and 
determination but is consolidated 
by their commitment to their team. 

I can’t wait to see what bright 
futures these wonderful girls have. 
City Black also made the trip east; 
this crew is now a staple of the 
ASRL competition and always 
perform well. City Black successfully 
managed to come away with a silver 
medal in the 160 category.

This season we have continued to 
develop our new sweeps. Patrick 
Anderson Loake and Tom Lowther 
continue to develop their skills, 
but the highlight has been the 
development of Kathleen Unwin. 
Kat is currently the only female 
competitive sweep in Western 
Australia. She is an extraordinary 
young woman who is committed to 
developing the boat section. She is 
breaking new ground and her skills 
continue to develop. She has had 
the support and guidance of all the 
sweeps in club including her crew 
the Phantoms who have provided 
invaluable guidance. Not only does 
she manage her time for training 
her crew as a sweep, she also is a 
valued rower in another crew. She 

has taken on a huge challenge of 
balancing rowing and sweeping 
and has made it look easy. Kat is 
a shining light in the progress of 
boaties and what a bright future it 
will be. I can’t wait to see what Kat 
will achieve in the future. 

The boat section continues to focus 
on development and opportunity 
throughout the section. This season 
we provided a ‘have a go evenings’ 
on Wednesdays at Matilda bay. This 
was different from last year where 
we ran only one session. We wanted 
to ensure that we gave everyone the 
opportunity to try Surf Boats. Thank 
you to Tom Lowther for running 
these evenings, without him they 
would not have been possible. I am 
looking forward to next season and 
seeing some of our talented new 
rowers in a boat. 

We look forward to a bigger and 
better season next year where we 
can battle it out to make up for 
the unfinished business of this 
season. I believe it will be a fantastic 
motivation for all of us to show 
what City of Perth Surf Life Saving 
Club is really made of. Bring on 
2020/2021!

Elizabeth Murray 
Boat Captain

BOAT ARENA REPORT

WATER ARENA 
REPORT
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In the 2019/20 season the IRB 
section continued to build its 
capability and sustainability. The 
highlights include:

Continuing IRB and Jet Ski 
Operations
The Club continues to partner with 
Surf Life Saving Western Australia to 
maintain Jet Ski operation from the 
City of Perth Surf Life Saving Club. 
The Jet Ski has again supported 
patrols, Nipper Water Safety on 
most Sundays, the Sunset Ski Series, 
several club events and inter-club/
Surf Life Saving Western Australia 
water safety during the Abalone 
Season and COVID-19 patrols. 

The IRB equipment inventory 
was complemented this season 
with a new E-Tec motor and 
associated hull provided by Surf 
Life Saving Australia and a new two 
stroke Mercury motor to support 
operations. Austal Ships also kindly 
donated a new beach trailer to the 
club for IRB launch and recovery.

Training & Proficiency
Several IRB Driver and IRB Crew 
training courses have been 
successfully completed during the 
season, resulting in the sign-off 
of seven new Drivers, eight Crew 
and two IRB Training Officers. City 
of Perth Surf Life Saving Club 
continues to cooperate with Floreat 
Surf Life Saving Club, including 
supporting the development of 
members of both clubs through 
shared training and assessment 
resources. The IRB section 
also arranged four discounted 
Recreational Skippers Ticket 
courses for IRB Driver candidates 
and other interested club members.

The female representation within 
IRB section remains strong with 
several new female Driver and Crew 
candidates trained by our newly 
qualified female trainer. We were 
also very pleased to see increased 
participation by the rowing section 
this year, with many of the newly 
qualified Drivers and Crew, also 
rowing for the club. The diversity 
of the section remains strong and 
reinforces the fact that IRB and 
Jet Ski operation is well within the 
reach of any club member who 
aspires to the IRB or RWC Silver 
Medallion Award. 

The club now has eight qualified 
RWC operators who successfully 
completed the Jet Ski course last 
season, facilitated by Surf Life 
Saving Western Australia and 
requalified this season. In addition 
to this requalification, several of 
the qualified RWC operators also 
successfully completed a rock 
rescue course facilitated by Surf 
Life Saving Western Australia 
during the season. 

The IRB section provided assessors 
for in-house and inter-club IRB 
Driver and Crew assessments.

IRB Driver and Crew training 
is planned for the winter 
season following easing of the 
current governmental isolation 
restrictions. There are several 
IRB Driver candidates preparing 
for assessment during the next 
six months. There is also ongoing 
discussion with Surf Life Saving 
Western Australia to train additional 
RWC Operators next season to 
increase the number of members 
qualified to support patrols.

Provision of Water Safety Services
The IRB Section was again a key 
contributor to intra- and inter-club, 
Surf Life Saving Western Australia 
coordinated and external events, 
providing both IRB and Jet Ski 
water safety support including 
the following:

• Sunday Nippers & Club Swim 
• SRC & Bronze Medallion 

Assessment & Requalifications
• Junior & Senior Carnivals 
• Abalone Patrol
• Sunset Surf Ski Series
• COVID-19 Patrols
• Cambridge Open Water Swim

A number of these external  
events simultaneously generated 
income for the club and promoted 
the City of Perth Surf Life Saving 
Club brand. It should be noted that 
the IRB section’s involvement in 
club activities extended well beyond 
the water with a number of the  
team willingly volunteering to 
provide shore-based support  
for several events.

IRB Racing
Unfortunately, the IRB racing season 
has been curtailed this year due to 
isolation restrictions. City of Perth 
Surf Life Saving Club continues 
its association with Floreat Surf 
Life Saving Club in combined race 
training and competition. The City 
Racing Team is very much in a 
formative period and requires the 
training commitment of several 
members to grow the team skills. 
The aim is to increase participant 
numbers, particularly Drivers, to 
enable City of Perth Life Saving 
Club to field its own teams at racing 
competition in the future whilst still 
training and jointly entering IRB 
racing carnivals with Floreat.

Another busy and successful 
season for the IRB section. Thank 
you to all IRB and Jet Ski personnel 
for their outstanding efforts. 
Particular thanks need to go to the 
section’s trainers and assessors for 
the great outcomes achieved. 

Special mention and thanks to 
Metro Motors Holden and Morley 
Mitsubishi for again providing the 
club with a support vehicle for the 
season - which beach operations 
would be severely restricted 
without; and to Surf Life Saving 
Western Australia for its patronage 
in establishing Jet Ski operations at 
City of Perth Surf Life Saving Club. 

In this uncertain time, the IRB 
section looks forward to return to 
normal operations in the 2020/21 
season. See you on the beach.

Tim Speer, Mike Lowry, Phil Green 
and Arthur Bajada
Joint Mobile Services Officers

IRB REPORT
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EDUCATION REPORT

2019/20 has been another 
productive season for education, 
with 499 new awards achieved 
(excluding Nipper Surf Awards 
which were not to hand at time of 
print) plus 650 proficiencies. These 
are large numbers which have been 
achieved with essentially only a 
handful of members coordinating, 
so a massive THANK YOU to all 
of our club trainers, assessors 
and facilitators. In particular we 
must thank our Bronze Medallion 
and SRC trainers who have 
backed up again and successfully 
inducted some large groups into 
surf lifesaving. Special thanks to 
Steve Reynolds for once again 
coordinating the Bronze Medallion 
and SRC proficiencies. This is a 
massive job and I’m sure most 
would agree that Steve has made 
this an almost seamless process 
once again.

We’d also like to thank Kylie in the 
office who has endured the many 
demands of the Education Officers 
and provided crucial support 
not only during the week, but 
also recording proficiencies and 
assessments on Sunday mornings. 

The season just gone was a 
period of consolidation within the 
education section of the club, and 
now we must focus on developing 
a new generation of trainers and 
assessors to ensure the ongoing 
functions of our great club. There 
are many benefits of becoming a 
trainer within surf lifesaving, not 
the least of which is the opportunity 
to work alongside a great bunch 
of like-minded individuals and the 
sense of accomplishment felt when 
your training group successfully 
completes their award. 

We are committed to providing more 
courses more frequently for all of 
our members, but to do so requires 
more trainers who can impart the 
valuable knowledge which they 
have collected themselves from surf 
over the years. 

2020/21 will see a raft of changes 
introduced by Surf Life Saving 
Australia in the way that some of 
our courses are delivered, and we 
look forward to implementing these 
changes and streamlining some of 
our courses as a result.

Phil Green and Matthew Slattery
Joint Education Officers

Vital Statistics for the 2019/20 season are:

PROFICIENCIES

Bronze Medallion 268

Surf Rescue Certificate 38

Nipper Rescue Certificate 33

Advanced Resuscitation 
Certificate 64

IRB Crew 44

IRB Driver 27

RWC Operator 6

Resuscitation 11

Junior Activities Competition 
Skills Evaluation & Preliminary 
Evaluation  159

Total Proficiencies 650

NEW AWARDS

Surf Rescue Certificate 40

Bronze Medallion 32

Silver Medallion Beach 
Management  3

Nipper Rescue Certificate 70

Advanced Resuscitation 
Certificate  16

Resuscitation 3

IRB Crew 8

Silver Medallion IRB Driver 7

WA Training Office IRB 2

WA Training Officer IRB Crew 1

WA Facilitator Advanced 
Resuscitation Certificate 1

Junior Activities Competition 
Skills Evaluation & Preliminary 
Evaluation 313

Age Manager 3

Total New Awards 499
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During the season, two temporary 
displays were placed in the cabinet 
in the hallway. The themes were:

• Club Teams – featuring 
photos and highlights of Club 
competitive teams to the 
Australian Championships from 
1972 until 1992.

• Swim Stars – featured photos of 
some of City’s best swimmers 
from 1926 to recent times.

As part of our commitment to 
display the Club history and 
memorabilia permanently, a number 
of items were added to the Foyer:

• Photos of four previous 
clubrooms 1926, 1931, 1935 and 
1970 were framed and mounted 
on the wall.

• A historic poster advertising the 
1971 Australian Championships 
at City Beach was framed and 
mounted. The 1971 Aussies 
at City Beach is the only 
championship in Western 
Australia held outside of the 
Scarborough-Trigg Island 
stretch of beach, and on present 
carnival specifications seems it 
will remain unique.

• A framed memorial window 
recognising Norman Wilkinson, 
a President and Secretary in 
the 1930s. This window was 
displayed in the entrance area 
of the 1935 club rooms from its 
inception in March 1939 until 
1970. It was then displayed in 
the Committee Room of the 1970 
clubrooms from 1970 until 2014. 
It has been mounted above the 
Fire Panel.

• Assistance was given in 
the compilation of the Club 
Supporters’ recognition board 
for those who contributed to the 
new clubrooms funding.

• The official Town of Cambridge 
plaque commemorating the 
opening of the new building  
was mounted just inside the 
front entrance.

Thanks are extended to Murray 
Hughes for his assistance in all of 
these items.

MARCH PAST REPORT

Our group underwent a few 
personnel changes this season, 
losing two experienced marchers in 
Anne Edmondson (hip replacement) 
and Rebecca Hartman (baby), but 
gaining three new members in 
Sharon Gough, Jane Hewitt and 
Jill Miller. Despite the shortened 
season, all were able to have at 
least one competitive march and 
all blended in well. Throughout the 
season, training attendance was 
regularly high, resulting in the group 
continuing to show improvement 
and building up that necessary 
“wow” factor.

Sorrento set the standard in the four 
scheduled competitions with our 
team consistently in second place 
and closing. This was our seventh 
season as a marching group, and I 
can proudly say it was producing the 
best performance to date.

It is unfortunate that the COVID-19 
virus led to both the State and 
Australian Championships being 
cancelled. Along with the Australian 
population, we are bunkering down 
to overcome the virus, but we all 
look forward to marching as a group 
again next season.

Ian Scott
Head of March Past

HISTORIAN / ARCHIVIST REPORT

A pleasing aspect of our job was to 
facilitate the viewing of club photos 
to families of deceased members 
and in some cases provide a copy. 
We also acknowledge a number of 
donations of photos and anecdotes 
from families of previous and 
current members. We welcome 
these donations as additions to 
our Club history and encourage all 
members to collect such items. 

Sue and Ian Scott
Club Historians
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Boat Person of the Year
Kathleen Unwin

Most Promising Under 14
Euan McKay

Most Promising Under 15
Sophie Baron-Hay and Grace Young 

Most Promising Under 17
Ayesha Razvi

Most Enthusiastic Under 19
Paige Bajada

Coach of the Year 
Tom Lowther

Instructor of the Year
Graham Wimbridge

Most Outstanding Contribution 
to the IRB/RWC Area
Meng Houng Chroek

Patrol Member of the Year
Michael Lorraine

The Eugene Mickle Award for 
Contribution to the Nippers
Ben Rogers

Best Patrol Team
Team 9 (12 members) Steve Prince, 
Nathan Scott, Mia Fraser, Andrew 
Hopkins, Nathan Hunt, Kalani 
Locke, Michael Lorraine, Grant 
Smith, Mikaela Stewart, Timothy 
Hunt, Ari Pearson, Cooper Reynolds.

Most Patrol Hours
John Guilfoyle

Best Club Member
Angela Razvi 

President’s Medal
Peter Johnson

Administrator of the Year 
Angela Razvi

LONG SERVICE AWARD
We congratulate six of our  
members who became eligible  
for Surf Life Saving Australia 
Long Service Awards.

50 Years’ Long Service
Andy Collins
Ian McRae

25 Years’ Long Service
Shane Bowler
Adrian Hirsch
Greg Johnston
Nicola Scott

CLUB TROPHIES AND AWARDS

STATE SHORT COURSE BOAT CHAMPIONSHIPS

GOLD MEDALLISTS
160 Years Boat Race
Shane Bowler; John Foster; Marc 
Goodall; Chris Lebesmuehlbacher; 
Grant Trew (Sweep)

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
U19 Female Short Course Boat Race
Paige Bajada; Samantha Denehy-
Johnson; Chloe Hogan; Alyssa Lee; 
Tom Lowther (Sweep)

AWARDS OF EXCELLENCE

NIPPER AND YOUTH AWARDS
Nipper Club Achiever
Hannah Young

Youth Club Achiever
Ayesha Razvi

SENIOR AWARDS
Have not been released yet
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STATE SURF BELT CHAMPIONSHIPS 2020

GOLD MEDALLISTS
U19 Male Surf Belt Race
Charlie Hewitt

SILVER MEDALLISTS
U17 Female Surf Belt Race
Nikita Fredonnet

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
Open Female Surf Belt Race
Sophie Lloyd

U19 Female Surf Belt Race
Sophie Lloyd

U17 Female Surf Belt Race
Daisy Hewitt

STATE LITTLE NIPPERS CHAMPIONSHIPS 2020

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
U9 Female Beach Flags
Jaycee Hart

STATE MASTERS CHAMPIONSHIPS 2020

GOLD MEDALLISTS
130 Years min Female Taplin Relay
Sharan Colliss; Linda Jackson; 
Nicola Scott

45-49 Years Female Board Rescue
Sharan Colliss; Nicola Scott

40-44 Years Male Surf Race
Troy Santen

40-44 Years Ironman
Troy Santen

45-49 Years Female Board Race
Nicola Scott

45-49 Years Female Single Ski
Linda Jackson

45-49 Years Female Surf Race
Linda Jackson

50-54 Female Surf Race
Sharan Colliss

50-54 Years Female 2km Run
Joanna Kagi

SILVER MEDALLISTS
130 Years min Male Taplin Relay
Michael Colliss; Troy Santen;  
Peter Scott

130 Years min Female Surf Teams
Sharan Colliss; Linda Jackson; 
Nicola Scott 

130 Years min Female Board Relay
Emily Chetwin; Linda Jackson; 
Nicola Scott

130 Years min Male Board Relay
Adrian Hirsch; Troy Santen;  
Peter Scott

40-44 Years Female Board Race
Emily Chetwin

45-49 Years Female Surf Race
Nicola Scott

BRONZE MEDALLISTS 
130 Years min Male Surf Teams
Michael Colliss; Adrian Hirsch;  
Troy Santen

130 Years min Female Single  
Ski Relay
Emily Chetwin; Linda Jackson; 
Nicola Scott

130 Years min Male Single  
Ski Relay
Michael Colliss; Troy Santen; 
Peter Scott

STATE ENDURANCE CHAMPIONSHIPS

GOLD MEDALLISTS
Open 2km Swim Race
Harry Hewitt

U19 2km Swim Race
Charlie Hewitt

45-54 2km Swim Race
Ben Hewitt

SILVER MEDALLISTS
Open 2km Swim Race
Charlie Hewitt

U15 2km Swim Race
Mia Nesbit

Open Male 3km Board Race
Matthew Colliss

U19 Male 3km Board Race
Matthew Colliss

U15 Female 3km Board Race
Mia Nesbit

45-54 Male 6km Single Ski
Ben Hewitt

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
U15 Female 3km Board Race
Sophie Baron-Hay

Under 13 Iron Woman
Hannah Young

35-44 Female 2km Swim Race
Emily Chetwin 

26TH OCTOBER 2019

SUNSMART WA NIPPER SURF LIFE 
SAVING CHAMPIONSHIPS
13 – 15 March, Scarborough Beach
Cancelled

SUNSMART WA LIFESAVING 
CHAMPIONSHIPS: (FIRST AID, 
CHAMPION PATROL, CHAMPION 
LIFESAVER)
21 – 22 March, City Beach
Cancelled

SUNSMART WA SURF LIFE SAVING 
CHAMPIONSHIPS
28 – 29 March, Scarborough Beach
Cancelled

CANCELLED EVENTS
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PATROL INFORMATION

PATROL  CAPTAIN VICE-CAPTAIN VICE-CAPTAIN
1 I & S Scott Peter Johnson Kane Suchenia Andrzej Meysner
2 J & J Scott Gabby Murphy Aiden Murphy 
3 B Lilburne & P Waey Graham Wimbridge Yasmeen Razvi Martin Gallagher
4 M Lowther  Brendon Entrekin Gary Namestnik  
5 J & G Leivers Rebecca Dunsdon  Tom Lowther 
6 W Jarman & K Hogg Harry Osbourne Jason Stoop 
7 G Mickle & P Andrew Daniel Scott Nicholas Scott 
8 R Harper Tom Wagstaff Laura Gillman Tom Cavanagh
9 G Wilson Steve Prince Nathan Scott 
10 P Cohen Talia Jackubans Thomas Judd 
11 I (Smithy) McRae Shaun Jessop Maelle Bourdais 
12 R Somerford Jolie Hewitt Cam Wishaw 
13 R Groser Elizabeth Mair Alex Gaynor 
14 L Buchan Max Anderson Loake Laura Schuhkraft Maddy Ardon
15 J Pouleris Emily Slattery Elizabeth Murray 
16 L Kelly David Scott Henry Bromfield 
17 G Trew Bridget Darragh Pat Upton Davis 
18 M Hughes Katie Schutze Sarah Viney 

PATROL HOURS

FULL NAME ALL PATROLLED HOURS*

James Abbott 4.75
Ben Adams 25
Charli Aitkenhead 23.5
Luka Allet 26
Thomas Anderson 4.5
Max Anderson Loake 20.73
Patrick Anderson Loake 1.98
Laine Andrew 19.25
Madeline Ardon 23.75
Jake Armstrong 19
Matthew Armstrong 33.25
Benjamin Arnold 14.5
Indianna Arnott 4.75
Tania Ashworth 19.75
Harrison Averbuj 4.75
Arthur Bajada 5
Luke Bajada 15.75
Paige Bajada 5.75
Cody Baker 36.08
Sophie Baron-Hay 24
Mark Beer 19.5
David Begovich 23.5
Tamsyn Black 16.25
Joshua Boulton 24
Maelle Bourdais 35.25
Chelsea Boyanich 0
Rebecca Boyanich 19
Kaylene Bozich 14.25
Lennox Brill 4.75
Henry Bromfield 17.25
Chris Brown 13.5
Matilda Brown 4.75
Zachary Brown 25.75
Andrew Buck 13.5
Ashley Burgess 23.75
Isabella Bynevelt 11.75
Ethan Capolingua 4.75
Gretchen Carden 25.25
Jamie Carle 29.25
Elliott Carson 15.5
Alexandra Cavanagh 23.75
Martyn Cavanagh 23.75
Thomas Cavanagh 38
Raphael Chee 16.5
Meng Houng Chroek 29
Ben Colliss 9.75
Matthew Colliss 19.25
Michael Colliss 12.25
Sharan Colliss 42
Ashlee Connell 4.75
David Cooley 21
Damien Cooper 13.25
Levi Cooper 2

Nicole Cooper 30.33
Nicholas Coutts 0
Sophia Coutts 0
Stuart Coutts 8
Geoff Cowie 6
Jaxon Crabb 2
Julie Crawford 18.25
Alan Crossland 14.25
Felicia Dahlstrom 4.75
Eoin Dalton 23.83
Rory Dalton 25.83
Bridget Darragh 23.75
Luke Davey 8.5
John Davies 31
James Davison 2.17
Kate De Marchi 23.5
Ryan De Marchi 23.08
Yves Dehouck 2
Tamahra Dempsey 0
Samantha Denehy Johnson 18.75
Ella Dickie 14.75
Rosa Dickie 19.5
Clayton Dorrington 4.5
Rebecca Dunsdon 22.75
Julia Dwyer 0
Bailey Eastman 28
Kirby Eastman 19
Mark Eaton 16
Tara Elders 23.75
Ashley Eldon 22.33
Tom Engelbrecht 18.5
Robert Engelhard 13.83
Samantha England 21.5
Travis England 3.5
Brendon Entrekin 24.25
Sandra Fay 9.5
Mark Ferguson 5
Murray Ferguson 23.5
Sharon Ferguson 23.75
Julia Feutrill 24.25
Joanne Fietz 6
Jessica Flavel 11.75
Sally Flavel 16.17
Tim Flavel 12
Leanne Fong 16.17
Catherine Ford 19
John Fox 25
Sandra Fox 20.5
Jonathan Francis 2
Gregory Fraser 6.17
Holly Fraser 23.75
Mia Fraser 27
Jules Fredonnet 24.75

Julien Fredonnet 24
Nikita Fredonnet 24
Don Frost 16.75
Zoe Gainer 0
Martin Gallagher 20.75
Alexandria Gaynor 20.92
Peter Gething 20.5
Tricia Gilbert 1
Laura Gillman 23.75
Jack Glass 25.75
Tarnica Golisano 4.75
Jade Graham 4.75
Phillip Green 5.17
Angus Gregg 7.5
Kate Griffin 28.42
John Guilfoyle 114.5
Christopher Gwynne 27
Mary Gwynne 23
Robert Haagman 8
Lauren Harding 18.5
Robert Harper 6
Bruno Harray 23
Jason Hart 9
Sharlene Hart 26.42
Ruth Harvey 2
Imogen Herrington 22
Benjamin Hewitt 39.25
Charlie Hewitt 28.5
Daisy Hewitt 32.25
Harry Hewitt 25.25
Jane Hewitt 12.75
Jolanta Hewitt 24
Ciara Hillery 19
Scott Hills 12
William Hoffmann 14.25
Chloe Hogan 9.5
Kevin Hogg 14.5
Michael Hogg 31.5
Tom Hollis 4.75
Anthony Holt 16.5
Andrew Hopkins 29.5
Hannah Hopkins 23.75
Emilia Horn 23.5
Taylah Horsham 25
Nathan Hunt 27
Timothy Hunt 7
Elizabeth Hutton 11.75
Katherine Hutton 28.5
Lauren Hutton 19
Joel Ireland 25.5
Tamsyn Ireland 19
Nicki Ivory 22.75
Ethan Jackson 9.5

*(Excluding Penalty Hours)
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PATROL HOURS CONT...

Kirby Jackson 21.17
Linda Jackson 14.25
Mia Jackson 15.75
Talia Jakubans 28.5
Shaun Jessop 25.75
Peter Johnson 33.75
Alicia Jones 23.75
Gordon Jones 2.25
Anna Jorgensen 23.75
Michael Jorgensen 11.5
Isabel Judd 9.75
Thomas Judd 22.48
Matt Judkins 6.5
Michael Judkins 2
Peter Kacperek 19.25
Joanna Kagi 8.75
Brendan Kavanagh 8.75
Matilda Keens 24.25
Grace Kent 14.75
Andrea King 16.83
Aston King 29
Aria Kyriakou 19.25
Julian Kyriakou 23
Grant Landers 14
Holly Landers 2
Fiona Langdon 4.5
Romi Lawlor 14.25
Fred Le Messurier 4.75
Christoph Lebesmuehlbacher 9.5
Alyssa Lee 19
James Lewin 18.58
Sophie Lloyd 33.75
Helen Loake 19.75
Kalani Locke 26.25
Ashley Longhorn 27
Michael Lorraine 50
Rebecca Lorraine 8
Michael Lowry 33.5
Mac Lowther 36.25
Thomas Lowther 19
Ben Lyons 13.83
Gary Mack 6
Ian Maddox 1.25
Mary-Anne Maddox 17.58
David Magee 6.25
Elizabeth Mair 30
Evan McAuliffe 14.25
Heath McCabe 56.5
Zai McCabe 26
Luke McCarter 2
Brad McCoy 19
Hannah McCoy 19
Charlotte McDermid 24

Rohan McGlew 24.17
Brett McIntosh 4.75
Euan McKay 68.83
Lyn McKay 4
Stuart McKay 18.5
Shannon McLaren 17
James McNiff 20.25
Kylie Mcveigh 10
James Merrillees 8
Louise Merrillees 8
Andrzej Meysner 17.25
Larissa Meysner 4.75
Brent Middlemiss 25.75
Abigail Minchin 14.25
Erin Mitchell 19
Shannon Mitchell 14.25
Ella Morison 19
Samuel Morison 19
Centaine Mumford 19
Michael Munday 8
Holly Murdoch 23.75
Aiden Murphy 23.75
Gabrielle Murphy 14.25
Elizabeth Murray 14.25
Gary Namestnik 24.5
Mia Nesbit 14.25
Ethan Nguyen 63.92
Jamie Nicholls 19.5
Amelia Noordzy 4.75
Maarten Noordzy 8.75
Thomas Noordzy 21.25
Peter Ogonowski 9
Ryan O’Halloran 8.25
Grant Oldfield 23.75
Harry Osbourne 28.25
Alison O’Toole 2
Alex Pallis 2.5
Amberley Parker 4.75
Dean Paton 21.75
Nicholas Payne 8.5
Remy Payne 26
Ari Pearson 11.75
Todd Pearson 18.25
Nathan Phillips 9.5
Ryder Phillips 0
Andrew Pollard 22
Stella Pollard 22.25
Dylan Poole 14.17
Michael Priest 23
Stephen Prince 29.25
Innes Raeburn 36.25
Ben Rayner 1.67
Angela Razvi 5.75

Ayesha Razvi 39.5
Farook Razvi 50.5
Yasmeen Razvi 18.5
Bruce Read 8
Catriona Read 19
Sonya Read 9.5
Anthea Redding 6
Jack Reddrop 23.33
Jack Retty 23.75
Cooper Reynolds 23.5
Stephen Reynolds 22.25
Stewart Rhodes 10.83
Daniel Roberts 2
Lachlan Roberts 16
Ben Robinson 2
Ben Rogers 41.5
Emma Rogers 30.75
Lily Rohde 37.75
Damian Rooney 14.75
Jack Rooney 15.33
Lila Rooney 2
Lisette Rooney 4.5
Patrick Ryan 19.25
Wayde Salfinger 6
Linda Salleo 14.25
Michael Sanderson-Green 19.5
Mundawae Sanderson-Green 4.75
Benjamin Schuhkraft 28.5
Laura Schuhkraft 26.25
Paul Schuhkraft 7.5
Katherine Schutze 28.5
Benjamin Scott 9.5
Daniel Scott 21.75
David Scott 19
Jeffrey Scott 9.5
Kalani Scott 16.75
Nathan Scott 31.5
Nicholas Scott 26
Mitchell Sellars 14.25
Jason Shaw 20.25
Nancy Shaw 28.5
Ryan Shepherd 6.67
Tania Shillington 18.67
Sara Shular 23.5
Amelia Sladden 17.75
Emily Slattery 23.75
Alexandra Slocombe 14.25
Brett Slocombe 4.75
Ella Slocombe 9.5
Alex Smedley 22.5
Ava Smedley 12.5
Grant Smith 24
Amelia Speer 15.42

PATROL HOURS CONT...

FULL NAME ALL PATROLLED HOURS*FULL NAME ALL PATROLLED HOURS*

Timothy Speer 9
Thomas Spencer 26.34
Matthew Starcevich 8.25
George Stewart 16
Jack Stewart 19
Mark Stewart 10.5
Meisha Stirling 13.25
Jason Stoop 18.75
Andrew Streeton 14
Rosie Streeton 20.73
Kane Suchenia 15.5
Eliza Swain 14.25
Hayley Swart 22.83
Mikaela Swart 28
Tim Swart 27
Ciara Taylor 28.25
Stephen Thomas 19.5
John Tolcher 23.75
Daisy Trang 4.5
Charlie Trew 24.5
Grant Trew 14.5
Kathleen Unwin 15.75
Patrick Upton-Davis 22.92
Isabel Vaillancourt 14.5
Peter Van Bruchem 20
Simon Van Den Berg 20.25
Chris Van Maanen 6
Jorja Van Pelt 45.75
Milla Varner 21
Sarah Viney 22.25
Nicholas Wagstaff 25
Thomas Wagstaff 23.75
Brett Wakefield 6.5
Andrew Walawski 2.25
Ben Walawski 6.5
Dolce Walker 19
Riley Walker 11.25
Heather Wallace 11
Rory Wallace 20.59
Annabelle Warden 14.25
Shelby Warren 23.75
Simon Watkins 9.5
Sophie Watts 23.34
Ryan Webb 7
Andrew Webster 14.5
Elinor Webster 31.42
Sinan Wehrli 19
Tiziano Wehrli 14.25
Darren Westphal 24
Becky White 4
Alice Williams 14.25
Georgia Williams 39
Patrick Williams 21.75

Simon Williams 16.25
Trinity Williams 0
Geoffrey Wilson 7
Graham Wimbridge 26
Cameron Wishaw 38
David Wishaw 14.25
Telani Woodham 18.75
Oliver Woods 19.25
Patrick Wormald 15.25
Tyson Wright 18.25
Sophie Wulff 9.5
Grace Young 29.08
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For the Year Ended 30 April 2020  
 

1 

 

 Note 
2020 

$ 
2019 

$ 
Revenue 4 908,884 879,343 
Depreciation and amortisation expense  (152,043) (150,953) 
Membership  (31,555) (25,780) 
Administration expenses  (73,094) (65,825) 
Member lounge and shop expenses  (91,750) (88,760) 
Lifesaving and Education  (16,315) (12,178) 
Competition  (9,588) (43,049) 
Juniors and Youth  (19,233) (24,356) 
Finance costs  (21,726) (44,992) 
Fundraising  (7,179) (1,157) 
Facilities  (140,587) (128,853) 
Events and promotions  (2,869) (20,723) 
Employee benefits expense  (309,600) (282,930) 

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year  33,345 (10,213) 

Other comprehensive income    

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  - - 

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss  - - 

Other comprehensive surplus for the year, net of tax  - - 

Total comprehensive surplus / (deficit) for the year  33,345 (10,213) 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Statement of Financial Position 
30 April 2020 
 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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 Note 
2020 

$ 
2019 

$ 

ASSETS    
CURRENT ASSETS    
Cash and cash equivalents 5 289,647 245,036 
Trade and other receivables 6 12,370 11,911 
Other Assets  - 200 
Inventories  40,404 37,691 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  342,421 294,838 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    
Property, plant and equipment 7 760,999 879,267 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  

760,999 879,267 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,103,420 1,174,105 

LIABILITIES    
CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Trade and other payables 8 39,086 46,190 
Employee benefits 10 13,176 14,456 
Deferred income  52,149 49,286 
Other financial liabilities 9 35,000 98,509 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  139,411 208,441 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Other financial liabilities 9 175,000 210,000 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  175,000 210,000 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  314,411 418,441 
NET ASSETS  789,009 755,664 
 

EQUITY    
Retained earnings  789,009 755,664 
TOTAL EQUITY  789,009 755,664 
 

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Statement of Financial Position 
30 April 2020 
 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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 Note 
2020 

$ 
2019 

$ 

ASSETS    
CURRENT ASSETS    
Cash and cash equivalents 5 289,647 245,036 
Trade and other receivables 6 12,370 11,911 
Other Assets  - 200 
Inventories  40,404 37,691 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  342,421 294,838 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    
Property, plant and equipment 7 760,999 879,267 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  

760,999 879,267 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,103,420 1,174,105 

LIABILITIES    
CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Trade and other payables 8 39,086 46,190 
Employee benefits 10 13,176 14,456 
Deferred income  52,149 49,286 
Other financial liabilities 9 35,000 98,509 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  139,411 208,441 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Other financial liabilities 9 175,000 210,000 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  175,000 210,000 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  314,411 418,441 
NET ASSETS  789,009 755,664 
 

EQUITY    
Retained earnings  789,009 755,664 
TOTAL EQUITY  789,009 755,664 
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2020 Retained 
Earnings 

$ 
Balance at 1 May 2019 755,664 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 33,345 

Other comprehensive income - 

Balance at 30 April 2020 789,009 
 
 
2019 Retained 

Earnings 
$ 

Balance at 1 May 2018 765,877 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (10,213) 

Other comprehensive income - 

Balance at 30 April 2019 755,664 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2020 
 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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 Note 
2020 

$ 
2019 

$ 

    

    

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    

Receipts for members and customers  911,288 879,916 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (712,667) (720,858) 

Interest paid  (21,726) (21,945) 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities  176,895 137,113 

  
  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (33,775) (4,919) 

Net cash used by investing activities  (33,775) (4,919) 

  
  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    

Repayment of borrowings  (98,509) (99,166) 

Proceeds from borrowings  - - 

Net cash used by financing activities  (98,509) (99,166) 

  
  

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held  44,611 33,028 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  245,036 212,008 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 5 289,647 245,036 

  
  

 
\
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5 

 

The financial statements cover City of Perth SLSC Inc as an individual entity. City of Perth SLSC Inc is a not-for-profit 
Association incorporated in Western Australia under the Associations Incorporation Act (WA) 2015 ('the Act'). 

The principal activities of the Association for the year ended 30 April 2020 were 
• To maintain efficient patrolling of the beach under the control of the Club.  
• To ensure the most effective methods of rescuing persons in distress, and the resuscitation of the apparently 

drowned by study and practice of the methods of Surf Life Saving as taught by "Surf Life Saving Australia Limited".  
• To provide for the recreational, social, sporting and educational needs of the members.  

The functional and presentation currency of City of Perth SLSC Inc is Australian dollars. 

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Committee of Management on 27 June 2020. 

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated. 

1  Basis of Preparation  

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with the 
Australian Accounting Standards – Related Disclosure Requirements and the Act. 

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

(a) Income Tax  

The Association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(b) Leases  

From 1 January 2020, as per AASB 16, any contract that is a lease, or contains a lease, are recognised as a 
right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet over the term of the lease. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the lease term 
or the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset and the monthly payment for the lease reduces the lease 
liability. 

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets are included in property, plant and equipment and 
lease liabilities are included in trade and other payables. 

(c) Revenue and other income  

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Association and specific criteria relating to the type of 
revenue as noted below, has been satisfied. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net of 
returns, discounts and rebates. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 
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 Sale of goods   

Revenue is recognised on transfer of goods to the customer as this is deemed to be the point in time when risks 
and rewards are transferred and there is no longer any ownership or effective control over the goods. 

 Grant revenue   

Grant revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the entity 
obtains control of the grant, it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the entity 
and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably. 

When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value directly back 
to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is recognised in the 
statement of financial position as a liability until the service has been delivered to the contributor, otherwise the 
grant is recognised as income on receipt. 

City of Perth SLSC Inc receives non-reciprocal contributions of assets from the government and other parties for 
zero or a nominal value. These assets are recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition in the statement of 
financial position, with a corresponding amount of income recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

 Government grants   

Government grants are recognised at fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all grant conditions will be met. Grants relating to expense items are recognised as income over 
the periods necessary to match the grant to the costs they are compensating. Grants relating to assets are 
credited to deferred income at fair value and are credited to income over the expected useful life of the asset on 
a straight-line basis. 

 Donations   

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. 

 Interest revenue   

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 

 Rendering of services   

Revenue in relation to rendering of services is recognised depending on whether the outcome of the services 
can be estimated reliably.  If the outcome can be estimated reliably then the stage of completion of the services 
is used to determine the appropriate level of revenue to be recognised in the period. 

If the outcome cannot be reliably estimated, then revenue is recognised to the extent of expenses recognised 
that are recoverable. 

The core principle of AASB 15 is that revenue is recognised on a basis that reflects the transfer of promised 
goods or services to customers at an amount that reflects the consideration the Association expects to receive in 
exchange for those goods or services.  
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Revenue is recognised by applying a five-step model as follows: 
1. Identify the contract with the customer 
2. Identify the performance obligations 
3. Determine the transaction price 
4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations 

Recognise revenue as and when control of the performance obligations is transferred 

 Gain on disposal of non-current assets   

When a non-current asset is disposed, the gain or loss is calculated by comparing proceeds received with its 
carrying amount and is taken to profit or loss. 

 Other income   

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Association is entitled to it. 

(d) Borrowing costs  

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

(e) Goods and services tax (GST)  

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). 

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables 
in the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows 
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 
classified as operating cash flows. 

(f) Inventories  

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Inventories acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration are valued at the current replacement cost as at the 
date of acquisition, which is the deemed cost. 

(g) Property, plant and equipment  

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2020

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2020 
 

8 

 

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired for nil or nominal consideration have been recorded at the 
acquisition date fair value. 

Where the cost model is used, the asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment losses. Costs include purchase price, other directly attributable costs and the initial estimate of the 
costs of dismantling and restoring the asset, where applicable. 

Assets measured using the revaluation model are carried at fair value at the revaluation date less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluations are performed whenever there is a 
material movement in the value of an asset under the revaluation model. 

 Plant and equipment    

Plant and equipment are measured using the revaluation model. 

 Depreciation   

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets 
useful life to the Association, commencing when the asset is ready for use. 

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the 
lease or their estimated useful life. 

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below: 
Fixed asset class Depreciation rate 
Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings  5% - 20%  
Competition Equipment  10%-20%  
Leasehold improvements  5% - 20%  

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset 
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate. 

(h) Financial instruments  

Financial instruments are recognised initially using trade date accounting, i.e. on the date that the Association 
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for 
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred). 

Financial Assets  

Financial assets are divided into the following categories which are described in detail below: 

• loans and receivables; 

Financial assets are assigned to the different categories on initial recognition, depending on the characteristics 
of the instrument and its purpose. A financial instrument’s category is relevant to the way it is measured and 
whether any resulting income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income. 
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All income and expenses relating to financial assets are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income in the ‘finance income’ or ‘finance costs’ line item respectively. 

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. They arise principally through the provision of goods and services to customers but 
also incorporate other types of contractual monetary assets. 

After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision 
for impairment. Any change in their value is recognised in profit or loss. 

The Association’s trade and other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments. 

Significant receivables are considered for impairment on an individual asset basis when they are past due at the 
reporting date or when objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default. 

The amount of the impairment is the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value of the 
future expected cash flows associated with the impaired receivable. 

In some circumstances, the Association renegotiates repayment terms with customers which may lead to 
changes in the timing of the payments, the Association does not necessarily consider the balance to be 
impaired, however assessment is made on a case-by-case basis. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ or other financial 
liabilities depending on the purpose for which the liability was acquired. Although the Association uses derivative 
financial instruments in economic hedges of currency and interest rate risk, it does not hedge account for these 
transactions. 

The Association‘s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables (including finance lease 
liabilities), which are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.  

Impairment of financial assets 

At the end of the reporting period the Association assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate. 

Impairment on loans and receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance accounts, all other impairment 
losses on financial assets at amortised cost are taken directly to the asset. 

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit or loss. 
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(i) Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows and are 
presented within current liabilities on the statement of financial position. 

(j) Employee benefits  

Provision is made for the Association's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within 
one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. 

 

3  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments  

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding 
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances. 

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial 
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates. 

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below. 

 Key estimates - receivables   

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that any of 
the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance is not 
considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date. 

 Key estimates - inventory   

Each item on inventory is reviewed on an annual basis to determine whether it is being carried at higher than its net 
realisable value. During the year, management have written down inventory based on best estimate of the net 
realisable value, although until the time that inventory is sold this is an estimate.  
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4  Revenue and Other Income  

  

2020 
$ 

2019 
$ 

Sales revenue    
- Membership fees  437,833 439,223 
- Sale of food, beverage and merchandise  38,601 121,137 

  476,434 560,360 

    

Other revenue    
- Donations and fundraising  18,152 29,692 
- Grants and sponsorship  94,445 81,739 
- Other trading revenue  319,503 206,491 
- Finance income  350 1,061 

  432,450 318,983 

Total Revenue  908,884 879,343 

 

5  Cash and Cash Equivalents  
Cash at bank and in hand  289,647 245,036 

  289,647 245,036 

6  Trade and Other Receivables  
CURRENT    
Trade receivables  12,370 11,911 

  12,370 11,911 
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7  Property, plant and equipment  

 

2020 
$ 

2019 
$ 

General and Office Equipment   
At cost 21,367 11,566 
Accumulated depreciation (13,597) (11,566) 

 7,770 - 

Competition and Lifesaving Equipment   
At cost 283,422 263,832 
Accumulated depreciation (237,287) (214,072) 

 46,135 49,760 

Gym Equipment   
At cost 245,419 243,469 
Accumulated depreciation (184,231) (135,276) 

 61,188 108,193 

Leasehold Improvements   
At cost 955,892 953,459 
Accumulated amortisation (309,986) (232,145) 

 645,906 721,314 

 760,999 879,267 

(a) Movements in Carrying Amounts   

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and 
the end of the current financial year: 

 

General & 
Office 

Equipment 
$ 

Competition 
& Lifesaving 
Equipment  

$ 

Gym 
Equipment 

$ 

Leasehold 
Improve- 

ments 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Year ended 30 April 2020 
     

Balance at the beginning of year - 49,760 108,193 721,314 879,267 
Additions 9,801 19,590 1,950 2,432 33,773 

Depreciation expense (2,031) (23,215) (48,955) (77,841) (152,042) 

Balance at the end of the year 7,770 46,135 61,188 645,905 760,999 
 

The Premises on Challenger Parade is utilised by the Association, from the Town of Cambridge, at a nominal 
rental amount and the committee have exercised the option to not show it as a Right to Use asset under AASB 
16 measure at fair value. 
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8  Trade and Other Payables  
    

  
 2020 

$ 
2019 

$ 
Current    
Trade payables  41,589 41,823 
GST payable  (2,503) 4,367 

  39,086 46,190 

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days.  The carrying 
amounts are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

9  Other Financial Liabilities  
CURRENT    
Rindle Pty Ltd (Maxima) loan  35,000 35,000 
Lease Liability Gym  - 63,509 

Total  35,000 98,509 

    

NON-CURRENT    
Rindle Pty Ltd (Maxima) loan  175,000 210,000 
Lease Liability Gym  - - 

Total  175,000 210,000 

10  Employee Benefits  
Current   
Annual leave 13,176 14,456 

 13,176 14,456  

 

(a) Operating Leases   
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:    
- not later than one year  - 63,509 
- between one year and five years  - - 

  - 63,509 

Operating leases are in place for gym equipment and normally have a term between 2 and 5 years. Lease 
payments are increased on an annual basis to reflect market rentals. 
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11  Auditors' Remuneration  
   

Remuneration of Crunch Auditing, for: 
2020 

$ 

2019 
$ 

- auditing the financial statements 4,000 4,000 

12  Contingencies  

In the opinion of the Committee of Management, the Association did not have any contingencies at 30 April 2020 

14  Events after the end of the Reporting Period  

The financial report was authorised for issue on 27 June 2020 by the Committee of Management. 

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the Association, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the 
Association in future financial years. 

15  Statutory Information  
 
The registered office of the association is: 

City of Perth SLSC Inc 
Challenger Pde 
City Beach WA  6015 

 
The principal place of business is: 

Challenger Pde 
City Beach WA  6015 
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In the opinion of the committee the financial report as set out on pages 1 to 19:  
 
1.  Present fairly the financial position of City of Perth SLSC Inc as at 30 April 2020 and its performance for the year ended 

on that date in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards – Related Disclosure Requirements (including 
Australian Accounting Interpretations) of the Australian Accounting Standards Board. 

 
2.  At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that City of Perth SLSC Inc will be able to pay its 

debts as and when they fall due. 
 

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the committee and is signed for and on behalf of the committee 
by: 

 

 

President ......................................................................................... 
 

 

 

Treasurer......................................................................................... 
 
 
 
Dated this .............................. day of June 2020 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial 
report.

Crunch Auditing Pty Ltd

Michael Cooper

Perth

27 June 2019

Independent Audit Report to the members of City of Perth Surf Life 
Saving Club Inc

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of City of Perth Surf Life Saving Club Inc (the Entity), which comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 30 April 2020, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of 
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements 
and the directors' declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Entity's financial position as at 30 April 2020 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year ended; and

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of 
our report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the auditor independence requirements of the 
ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We
have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the Entity's ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S REPORTAUDITOR’S REPORT
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T 08 9385 9232
E admin@citysurf.asn.au
citysurf.asn.au

181-183 Challenger Parade, 
City Beach WA 6015
PO Box 387 Scarborough, WA 6922

SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB

@cityofperthslsc

cityofperthslsc

@cityslsc

TO OUR SPONSORS AND SUPPORTERS


